
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday 12 September 2022. 

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Employment 
Committee  

     
 

 

Wednesday, 21 September 2022 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, Councillor Annie Mason, Councillor Adam Stokes, 
Councillor Paul Wood and Alliance SK Vacancy  
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, via the  
SKDC YouTube Channel 

 

 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on:  
 

3(a) 9 March 2022 
 

3(b) 28 March 2022 
 

3(c) 15 June 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 16) 

4.   Updates from the previous meeting 
 

To consider updates on the Actions agreed at the previous meeting. 
 

(Page 17) 

5.   Pay Review Update 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with an 
update on the progress of the Pay Review. 
 

(Pages 19 - 36) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/user/SouthKestevenDC


 

6.   Corporate Values Update 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee 
with an update on the refresh of South Kesteven District Council’s 
corporate values.  
 

(Pages 37 - 45) 

7.   Induction Update 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee 
with an update on South Kesteven District Council’s induction process.  
 

(Pages 47 - 50) 

8.   Pensions Policy Statement and Pensions Discretions Procedure 
 

The purpose of the report is to present a draft updated Pensions Policy 
Statement and Pensions Discretions Procedure for consideration by the 
Employment Committee and seek approval for delegation.  
 

(Pages 51 - 76) 

9.   SKDC Intranet 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with 
an update on the Council’s intranet. 
 

(Pages 77 - 80) 

10.   Draft Operational Driving Policy 
 

The draft Operational Driving Policy details the arrangements that are in 
place and the collective responsibilities that will ensure that the risks 
associated with occupational driving are minimised, so far as reasonably 
practicable.  
 

(Pages 81 - 98) 

11.   Employee Handbook 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with 
an update on the Council’s employee handbook and next steps of the 
handbook review.  
 

(Pages 99 - 103) 

12.   Employee Rewards and Recognition 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with 
an update on employee recognition.  

(Pages 105 - 108) 

 Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

It is likely that the press and public will be excluded during discussion of 
the following agenda item because of the likelihood that information that 
is exempt under paragraph 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972 (as amended) as the information relates to an employee of the 
Council. 
 

 

13.   Proposed Director Targets for 2022 – 2023 
 

The report seeks input and engagement from Members of the 
Employment Committee and the approval for the proposed Directors 
appraisal targets for 2022-2023.  
 

(Pages 109 - 118) 

14.   Work Programme 2022 – 2023 
 

Members to consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2022-2023. 
 

(Pages 119 - 121) 

15.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 

 



 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES 
 

Employment Committee 
 
Wednesday, 9 March 2022, 10:00 
 
Council Chamber – South Kesteven House, 
St. Peter’s Hill, Grantham.  NG31 6PZ 

 

 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 
 

 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Kelham Cooke 
Councillor Barry Dobson 
Councillor Annie Mason 
Councillor Adam Stokes 
Councillor Paul Wood 
 

 

Officers in attendance 
 
Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 
Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 
Fran Beckitt (HR Manager) 
Jane Jenkinson (Senior HR Officer) 
Sam Fitt (Project Lead) 
Sarah Downs (Democratic Officer) 
 

 

 

1. Apologies for absence 
 
There were none. 

 
2. Disclosure of interests 

 
There were none. 

 
3. Minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2022 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2022 were proposed, seconded, 
and AGREED as a correct record. 

 
4. Updates from the previous meeting 

 
The Leader of the Council confirmed that the Pay Policy Statement 2022 – 2023 
was approved at Full Council on 3 March 2022. 

5

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 
 

5. Gender Pay Gap 
 

The Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities presented a report on the 
Council’s position with the Gender Pay Gap for 2020/2021.  The Authority is legally 
required to report its pay gap figures annually to show the difference in pay between 
men and women.  The information in the report highlighted key aspects of the 
gender pay gap reporting requirements and the breakdown of the information and 
showed significant improvement. 
 
The Project Lead continued that the Council’s mean gender pay gap for 2020/2021 
had reduced by 0.35% since last year and the median pay gap reduced by 6.4%.  
This showed significant improvement when compared against the national figure of 
14.9% and the public sector figure of 14.8% for the gender pay gap for the whole 
economy (according to Office for National Statistics (ONS) 2021 annual survey 
figures). 
 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 

• The report was very positive.  A huge improvement was fantastic and 
especially important when recognising International Women’s Day this week. 

 

• The number of women in lower quartile had improved.  Was this due to better 
access to roles that were traditionally male in the past? 

 

• Were women encouraged to take on roles such as HGV driving? 
 

• It was noted that it was important that the best person for each role is 
recruited, whether male or female.  Opportunities given must be equal. 

 
The Project Lead confirmed that there was an increasing amount of opportunities 
for women within the Council.  This was largely due to a more flexible way of 
working emerging since the pandemic.  A large proportion of staff had embraced a 
hybrid working style.  The Waste Team had more female operatives and 
stereotypes were disappearing in what were traditionally male areas such as the 
tradespeople within the Direct Works Organisation.  The Committee were informed 
that there were no specific measures to encourage female HGV drivers in particular 
as there was a shortage of drivers nationwide.  

 
AGREED: 
 
That the Employment Committee noted the outcomes of the 2020/2021 Gender 
Pay Gap Report. 
 
 
 

6



 
 

6. Pay Review Update 
 

The Committee were presented with a report that provided a brief update on the pay 
review following the endorsement of the pay review scope at the Employment 
Committee meeting on 19 January 2022.  Members were asked to note the 
proposed actions and timescales for the implementation of the review that were 
detailed within the report – in particular, the next steps, quality impact assessment 
and working group timetable. 
 
The following points were raised by Members during discussion: 
 

• Were grades being reviewed and was the process similar to a job evaluation? 
 

• The final report was scheduled for March 2023.  Would this be too late for the 
implications to be worked into the budget? 

 
The Deputy Chief Executive informed the Committee that the review was not the 
national pay negotiation.  It was a process to deal with the anomalies that exist 
within the pay system.  The increase in minimum and living wage has caused there 
to be little difference in pay between some levels of role and the structure in pay 
must be fair.  There was ongoing communication with the Finance Team in 
reference to the budget. 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council added that any budget implications from the 
report would be backdated. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the Committee noted the proposed actions and timescales for the 
implementation of the Pay Review. 
 

7. Work Programme 2021 - 2022 
 

The Committee noted the contents of the Work Programme 2021 – 2022. 
 
A Member raised the following point: 
 

• It was noted that the Chief Executive’s appraisal was recorded as being 
‘conducted’ by the Committee and should be amended as being ‘noted’ by the 
Committee. 

 
 

8. Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

Members considered excluding the press and public, following a vote it was 
AGREED unanimously. 
 
 

7



 
 

DECISION: 
 

That the press and public be excluded during discussion of the following 
agenda item because of the likelihood that information that is exempt under 
paragraph 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) 
would be disclosed to them. 

 
9. Chief Executive's Appraisal 

 
Restricted Minute. 

 
10. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, 

decides is urgent 
 

The Chairman informed the Committee that the extra Employment Committee 
meeting scheduled for 30 March 2022 was to be rearranged for a different date 
which was to be confirmed imminently. 
 

11. Close of meeting 
 

The Chairman closed the meeting at 11:10. 
 
 

8



 
 

Meeting of the 
Employment Committee 
 
Monday, 28 March 2022, 3.00 pm 
 
Council Chamber – South Kesteven House, 
St Peter’s Hill, Grantham 
NG31 6PZ 

 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Kelham Cooke 
Councillor Barry Dobson 
Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Annie Mason 
Councillor Adam Stokes 
Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Paul Wood 
 
Officers present 
 

 

 

Karen Bradford, Chief Executive  
Fran Beckitt, HR Manager  
Nick Moverley, former HR Manager 
 

 

 

 
12. Apologies for absence 

 
No apologies for absence had been received. 

 
13. Disclosure of interests 

 
None disclosed. 

 
14. Exclusion of Press and Public 

 
Members considered excluding the press and public, following a vote it was 
AGREED unanimously. 
 
DECISION: 
 
That the press and public be excluded during discussion of the following 
agenda item because of the likelihood that information is exempt under 
paragraph 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) 
would be disclosed to them. 

9



 
 

 
15. South Kesteven Corporate Restructure Proposals for 2022 

 
Restricted minute.  

 
 

10



 

Meeting of the 
Employment Committee 
 
Wednesday, 15 June 2022, 10.00 
am 

 
 

 
 

Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Kelham Cooke 
Councillor Adam Stokes 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew 
Councillor Paul Wood 
Councillor Penny Milnes 
 
 
Officers  
 
Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive 
Fran Beckitt, HR Manager 
Keeley Asher, HR Officer 
Sam Fitt, Project Lead 
Lucy Bonshor, Democratic Officer 
 

 
1. Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Anna Kelly and Councillor 
Annie Mason.  
 
Councillor Penny Mines was a substitute for Councillor Anna Kelly. 

 
2. Disclosure of interests 

 
None disclosed. 

 
3. Updates from the previous meeting 

 
The HR Manager stated that the Phase 1 restructure had been confirmed and 
currently there were no further updates. 

 
4. Employee Engagement Survey 

 
The HR Manager presented the report on the Employee Engagement Survey 
2021/22 which had taken place in December 2021. 

 

11



 

The survey had been undertaken by an independent provider, Protostar UK.  Areas 
covered within the survey included management, leadership, communications and 
wellbeing, with 55 questions being asked.  
 
Members were given a presentation in respect of an on line document that had 
been compiled and would be communicated to employees concerning the results of 
the survey and the action plan in place following the feedback received.  The 
document would be kept updated throughout the year and actions communicated to 
employees. 
 
Forty-five percent of employees had responded to the survey which was down from 
64% the previous year. The response rate was lower than anticipated and there 
had been challenges engaging with people who were working from home.  Work 
had been done to engage with as many people as possible, with officers going 
down to the depot to encourage people to respond and the survey deadline had 
been extended. 
 
The engagement index which was made up of six key questions was 64% which 
was lower than the 65.5% of the previous year.  Positive areas of the survey were 
around Covid and decision making during this period, and individual teams being 
treated with respect and supported within those teams scored highly.  One of the 
lowest scoring questions was around moral which at 32% was similar to previous 
surveys.  Work had been done to explore the reasons for this.  Other low scoring 
questions were around communication between departments and perceived career 
opportunities within the Council.  Due to the lower response rate and variation in 
team sizes it had been difficult to compare and breakdown the responses received.   

 
Highest responses had been received from the senior management in 
neighbourhoods and licensing, leisure and building control.  The lowest scores had 
come from housing repairs, arts and benefits. 
 
One of the steps following the survey was the launch of the People Panel in March 
2022.  The Panel comprised 25 colleagues from different departments and they 
looked in more depth at the results of the survey, what it was telling us, what people 
were thinking when they completed the survey and what actions could be derived 
from the feedback received.  Separate sessions were also held with the Leadership 
Teams of each department around what the survey results revealed.    Managers 
then held separate engagement sessions with their teams on the results and what 
specific actions employees wanted to see.  At a meeting of the People Panel held 
last month priority actions from across the Teams were agreed. 
 
A comment was made about the low response rate, less than half the employees 
had completed the survey, and the question was asked if employees still had the 
opportunity to take a break and fill the survey in during work time, also that the 
survey continued to be anonymous.  It was also felt that due to the low response 
rate the results were not as meaningful as previous surveys where completion had 
been higher.  It was caveated that due to the change and transformation taking 
place especially in the last year, those areas such as housing, arts and culture 
where poor performance was being dealt with would have a response rate that was 
less favourable.  The Leader stated that he would like to see a robust plan in place 

12



 

for the next survey and that staff were allocated time within their working day to 
complete it.  It was felt that the low response rate did not give a conclusive result. 

 
The Deputy Chief Executive accepted the comments made, but stated that although 
statistical the whole results were valid, when they were broken down into teams 
they were not, due to the small numbers involved.   Staff needed to know that it was 
worthwhile to complete the survey and that it did make a difference.   The HR 
Manager stated that even if a higher percentage of survey returns had been 
received, the same trends would still be shown. 
 
Another Member acknowledged the low response rate and referred to issues that 
had happened such as Covid and the changes currently taking place within some 
section.  The survey was a snapshot in time, it was how the responses to the 
survey were addressed going forward.  This was echoed by other Members and it 
was noted that the new ways of working and new office accommodation would 
affect results going forward. 

 
Discussion on how the survey was completed followed and acknowledgement 
made of the current challenging period. 
 
The Engagement Plan was then discussed.  It detailed what people felt was 
important: 
 

• communications  

• better ways of working together between teams  

• more social events 

• career opportunities 
 
and what actions could be put in place to support these areas such as having virtual 
Find out Fridays and work done following appraisals to help develop and support 
employees. 
 
Further discussion on the Engagement Plan followed and the work being 
undertaken on engagement, development and support for new line managers, 
communications, having a wellbeing plan, the hybrid approach to working, and 
looking at pay.  It was noted that pay was not consistent and the HR Manager 
stated that benchmarking was taking place but it was inconsistent, an update on the 
pay review would come to the next meeting of the Committee. 
 
➢ Action 
 
An update on the Pay Review to the next meeting of the Committee. 

 
More discussion then followed on the employment market and that some sectors 
were finding it very challenging to recruit staff.  Covid had impacted the market and 
there had been a major shift with a large proportion of people reaching retirement 
age.  Work was on going to address gaps in the market with graduate and 
apprenticeship schemes together with partnership working and succession planning 
together with the staff offer available. 

13



 

 
The HR Manager was thanked for the presentation and the work being undertaken. 
 

5. People Plan Update including HR Dashboard 
 

The Chairman introduced the report which updated Members on the HR People 
Plan and included the HR Metrics from the HR Dashboard for the financial year 
2021/22. 
 
The People Plan focused on the six main strands of the HR Strategy: 
 

• Engagement 

• Development 

• Recruitment/Workforce Planning 

• Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 

• Reward and Recognition 

• Wellbeing 
 
and the actions being taken/planned in respect of each area.  Engagement had 
been spoken about during the previous agenda item.  
 
Under the Development section: 
 

• 497 individuals attended learning events across 112 separate events.   

• There were 14 apprenticeships (9 new and 4 graduated from courses) 

• Apprenticeships covered building control, planning, electricians, plumbers and 
HGV drivers. 

• Two people had been employed through the Government’s Kickstart Scheme 
which was aimed at people aged between 16 – 24 years old who were on 
Universal Credit getting into work and had been very successful. 

• Work was in progress to employ a student from Loughborough University as 
part of a sandwich placement in Planning Services. 

• 66%, 220 appraisals had been completed to date. 

• Work was on going to upskill managers and aspirations discussed during the 
appraisal process. 

• A wide array of different management courses taking place around the new 
on-line Management System.  

 
Under Recruitment/Workforce Planning Section: 
 

• Outturn headcount for Quarter4 was 546, 282 males, 264 females, 435 FT 
and 111PT. 

• There had been 90 new starters and 119 leavers, this was an increase in 
leavers from the 84 of the previous year and mirrored what was happening in 
other organisations.  Benchmarking with other Local Authorities showed that 
South Kesteven was still below average in turnover.  Exit interviews took place 
with Managers and HR to discuss the reason for the leaving the organisation. 

 

14



 

A question was asked about whether it was specific sections or demographic where 
staff were leaving.  It was noted that street scene had a high turnover of staff as did 
housing.  From a demographic perspective the leavers tended to be 50+. 
 

• 44% of staff had been with the authority less than 6 years, but there was a 
good mix of other service time. 

• Work was being undertaken on attracting people to come and work for South 
Kesteven with videos being taken of staff as part of the campaign and in 
person inductions starting again. 

• Work was being done in respect of resignations and contingency planning. 

• Currently 97% of staff were on a one month notice period and when annual 
leave was built into it, it didn’t leave time for a decent handover or recruitment 
period.  Consultation was taking place with unions to increase some 
contractual notice periods and work was being done to improve the quality of 
handover planning. 
 

Questions were asked about career fayres for local schools and universities and 
open days.  In respect of apprenticeships work was done with local schools but 
work had been impacted by Covid and it was confirmed that open days had taken 
place in the past.  The Leader indicated that he had attended sixth forms and 
colleges in the past and also there had been an increase in applications for work 
experience at the Council Offices this year.  The HR Manager confirmed that there 
were students coming for work experience during July 2022 and a programme had 
been compiled which included meeting the Leader and it would help to promote the 
Council with younger people. 

 
The next area covered Equality, Diversity and Inclusion. 

• Pie charts covered disability, religion, ethnicity and sexual orientation although 
it was noted that this information was not held for a large number of those who 
worked for the Council.  One Member asked if going forward the information 
could be listed with numbers rather than shown in a pie chart as it was felt that 
zero did not add anything to the information before the Committee. 

 

➢Action 
 
In future information in respect of disability, religion, ethnicity and sexual 
orientation to be listed with numbers rather than shown in a pie chart. 

 

• Over 50% of the Council’s workforce was 50+. 
 

A question was asked about the difference between “declined to answer” and “did 
not answer” to which Project Officer replied. 

 

• The gap between gender was narrowing with only 18 more males than 
females, although sections such as street scene and repairs tended to be 
dominated by males with revenues and customer services having more 
females. 

• In respect of diversity a Menopause Café had recently been set up and had 
received a good turnout and an expert was coming next month.  A Parents 

15



 

Forum had also been set up supporting working parents and more information 
had been asked for around children’s mental health and a development 
programme working with the Conversation at Stamford, who were a charity 
had been arranged with a question and answer session next month.   

 
Reward and Recognition was the next strand and work had been focused on the 
Recognition Strategy.  Long Service awards were being looked at and rather than 
the recognition of doing 30 years when someone leaves it was now being 
undertaken when it happens.  Also, other work in respect of monthly staff 
recognition draws and employee awards was being undertaken. 
 
Sickness absence figures for 2021/22 which came under the Wellbeing strand were 
then discussed.  Short term sick, which was an absence under four weeks stood at 
1973.99 for 2021/22 and long term sick stood at 4968.68 which was an average of 
13.69 per full time equivalent working days lost.  In 2019 that had been 12 days and 
in 2020 that had fallen to 9 days.   The reason for short term sick tended to be colds 
and flu and long days by a significant margin the reason was mental health issues 
and it highlighted the need to support colleagues with mental health issues. 
 
A question was asked about the average sickness absence in the Local 
Government Sector to which the HR Manager replied that in relation to those 
authorities that were benchmarked South Kesteven was in the middle. Everyone 
had seen an increase and it was slightly higher than the public sector benchmarks.  
Work was being undertaken in respect of those with long term sickness absence 
with occupational health getting involved and upskilling for line manager on how 
they could support long term absentees.   
 
It was asked if comparison figures could be included with other authorities in 
respect of absence to give a clearer picture of where South Kesteven stood. 
 
➢Action 
 
That comparison absence figures for other local authorities be included 
going forwarded. 
 
A question was asked about occupational health support to which the HR Manager 
replied that currently tendering for a new occupational health contract was being 
undertaken but independent occupational support was available. 
 
(11:26 Councillor Paul Wood left the meeting and did not return) 
 
The presentation then highlighted return to work interviews which at 92% was lower 
than it should have been. Although interviews were being undertaken that was not 
progressing to the iTrent system.  The Employer Assistant Programme had 
received 73 calls up from 54 calls the previous year and the Mental Health First 
Aiders had received 83 visits opposed to 27 the previous year.  The information 
showed that the mental health support on offer was being increasingly utilised. 
A wellbeing survey had been conducted and based on the responses received a 
Staff Wellbeing Plan had been put together for 2022/23 by the Wellbeing Steering 
Group based on what staff wanted. 

16



 

 
The HR Manager concluded the presentation highlighting the number of 
disciplinaries that had been undertaken during 2021/22 which had increased during 
quarter 4 and had been impacted by a specific case. 
 

6. Work Programme 2022 - 2023 
 

The following items were discussed for inclusion on the Work Programme: 
 

• Director’s targets – next meeting 

• Pension Policy – next meeting 

• Report to Committee on the move to the new accommodation when it had 
been completed 

 
The HR Manager stated that she would be meeting with the Cabinet Member for 
People and Safer Communities, the Monitoring Officer and the Chairman of the 
Employment Committee to discuss the next agenda. 
 
One Member asked about when the Intranet would be coming to Committee.  It was 
stated that a fundamental overhaul of the system was required and a report would 
be coming to the September meeting about what the next steps entailed. 
 

7. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, 
decides is urgent 

 
None. 

 
8. Close of meeting 

 
The meeting closed at 11:36. 

 
 

17



This page is intentionally left blank



Action Sheet 
To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 15 June 2022 meeting of the Employment Committee.  

Minute 
no. 

Agenda Item Action(s) Assigned to Response/Status 

5. Employee 
Engagement 
Survey 

a) An update on the Pay Review to the 
next meeting of the Employment 
Committee 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

Pay Review Report added to the Work 
Programme for 21 September 2022 meeting. 

5. Employee 
Engagement 
Survey 

b) That comparison absence figures for 
other local authorities be included 
going forward 

HR Manager  
Noted. 

 

 

19

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1  
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

21 September 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Annie 
Mason, Cabinet Member for 
People & Safer Communities 
 
 

 

 

Pay Review Update 
 

Report Author 

Jane Jenkinson, Senior HR Officer  

   Jane.Jenkinson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with an update on 

the progress of the Pay Review. 

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Employment Committee: 

 

1. Notes the update of the Pay Review based on the agreed scope of the review. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The pay review could have significant financial implications for the Council and so 

the review will need to be undertaken in the context of the financial framework.  It 

is important that any changes to the salary bandings are carefully considered prior 

to any implementation. 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.3 An Equality Impact Assessment on the Pay Review has been completed. This 

analysis has not identified any potential for discrimination or for negative impact 

and all opportunities to promote equality have been taken. 

 

 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.4 The current cost of living crisis is likely to have a significant impact on people’s 

mental health and wellbeing.  Consideration should be given to how the Council 

can best support staff from a financial wellbeing perspective.  The review of the 

lower grades as detailed in this report should provide some clarity for staff.  

Signposting of existing support and benefits available should also be regularly 

communicated. 

 

22



2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  A Pay Review Update report was presented to and noted by the Employment 

Committee on 9th March 2022.  This report included proposed actions and 

timescales. 

 

2.2 A number of actions noted under Next Steps in the Employment Committee report 

on 9th March have been completed.  These include:  

  

• An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed on the scope of the Pay 

Review.  

• Setting up of a Pay Review Working Group to develop proposals.  Separate 

sub- groups will also be set up to look at each of the four areas of the Pay 

Review Scope.  

• Details of the pay review and its proposed scope have been communicated to 

the Trade Unions through the Joint Consultative and Negotiating Committee 

meetings which are led by Chief Executive.  

• An action plan has been developed to deliver the scope of the Pay Review (see 

Appendix A).   

 

2.3 The following information provides an update on each of the separate areas of the 

Pay Review Scope. 

 

The use of career grades to attract talent to the organisation and provide 

development opportunities and progression to develop and retain rising stars.  

 

2.4 The Council’s recruitment strategies are aimed at maintaining a high calibre 

workforce with the skills, competencies, knowledge and experience to deliver a 

diverse range of excellent services and to meet its many objectives. Career 

Grades are one of a range of initiatives that can be used to resolve recruitment 

and / or retention difficulties and supporting succession planning.   

 

2.5 Career Grades enable the employment of people who may not have the required 

level of qualification / competency but who could be trained to achieve the 

necessary levels over a reasonable period of time. 

 

2.6 Career Grades may be used for hard to fill jobs and for the transition from 

apprenticeship to employment. 

 

2.7   One of the actions of the People Strategy 2022-25 is to increase the use of 

apprenticeships and career development roles to ‘grow our own’ for hard-to-recruit 

to roles. 

 

2.8 The Council offers a wide range and levels of apprenticeship opportunities and 

may, in some cases, be able to offer a job at the end of the apprenticeship and in 

some circumstances, it might be appropriate to support the former apprentice by 

23



appointing them to a career grade to give them more time to achieve the essential 

job requirements.   

 

2.9 A career grade pay review group has been set up to identify opportunities for 

career grades.  There is a specific focus on hard to fill roles and promotion of 

career grades in current recruitment advertising. 

 

2.10 The promotion of career grades has been launched within the Environmental 

Health team who are currently advertising for an Environmental Health 

Officer/Senior Environmental Health Officer providing an opportunity for a 

graduate to be appointed with a career development plan. 

 

2.11 To ensure equity and consistency across the Council work is underway with the 

pay review sub-group to develop a career grade procedure with guidance for 

managers.   

 

A review of the lower range of pay grades to ensure that there is clear 

differentiation between the grades, based on the 2022 Real Living Wage rate.  

 

2.12    The new Real Living Wage will be announced on 22 September 2022. Upon 

confirmation of this rate, plans will be put in place to adjust the lower pay scales to 

ensure they are on or above the Real Living Wage as per our commitments.  

 

2.13 The Real Living Wage is voluntarily paid (i.e. giving our people higher salaries 

than the legal minimum wage) in recognition for the increasing costs of living.  

 

2.14    The National Employers have made a one year (1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023) 

offer to unions representing local government NJC workforce. This offer is that 

with effect from 1 April 2022, an increase of £1925 for all NJC pay points 1 and 

above. Whilst South Kesteven District Council are not in the collective pay 

negotiations, we do usually align our pay deals. This has therefore been modelled 

against our pay scales pending the outcome of the national offer.  

 

2.15    In readiness for this year’s pay deal, South Kesteven District Council have 

modelled removing the lowest scale points in order to create more differentiation 

between grades in the bottom scales. 

 

Analysis of similar roles across the organisation to identify any inconsistencies 

between pay grades. Consideration to be given to the setting of salary bands for 

different levels e.g. senior officer, 1st line manager, team leader, service manager.  

 

2.16 Salaries for roles which are considered similar are often queried by staff and can 

result in perceptions of unfairness.  Analysis has been carried out on roles with 

line management responsibility below the level of Service Manager and the 

following table summarises the position: 

 

24



Job Title Grade 

1st Line Supervisor SK10/11 

1st Line Supervisor with specialist 
knowledge 

SK12/14 

2nd Line Supervisor SK12 

1st Line Supervisor with Professional 
qualification 

SK16/19 

Team Leader/Manager SK16/19 

 

2.17 This analysis has not identified any internal pay inconsistences. 

 

2.18 In the broader bands for 1st Line Supervisor with Professional Knowledge and 

Team Leader/Manager shown in the table above there will be different levels of 

knowledge, numbers of staff and level of budget responsibility which account for 

the wider banding. 

 

2.19 The salary information shown above could provide a structured framework for line 

manager roles and associated salaries. These roles fall into natural salary bands 

based on the level of responsibility. 

 

2.20  The salary for all roles across the Council below Service Manager level are 

determined through the job evaluation system.  As part of the job evaluation 

process moderation of the outcome is carried out which includes comparison with 

similar roles. 

 

2.21 The Job Evaluation Procedure is currently being updated and it is proposed that 

job evaluation panels will form part of the process.  In addition to the line manager 

and HR the panel will include an independent person who has been trained in the 

job evaluation process.   

 

2.22 In addition to internal benchmarking, we are currently working with other councils 

benchmarking pay scales, market supplements and honorariums.  This work will 

identify any external pay differentials between similar roles. 

 

2.23 There is no intention to change salary bandings for line management roles and 

therefore no budgetary implications. 

   

2.24 Salary bands are already in place for Head of Service roles and above. 

 

 

Develop a consistent process for the benchmarking of roles, particularly those 

which are hard to recruit to. Consideration could be given to using job evaluation 

in conjunction with salary benchmarking, and the use of external benchmarking 

tools. To provide meaningful evidence to support pay decisions.   

 

25



2.25 Research of external salary benchmarking tools has shown them to be expensive 

and unlikely to provide value for money for the relatively small number of roles that 

they would be relevant to within SKDC. 

 

2.26 East Midlands Councils have a pay and rewards network in place to facilitate an 

exchange on broader pay and reward issues as well as identifying some posts for 

pay benchmarking.   

 

2.27 Recruitment in hard to fill roles is particularly challenging in the current climate and 

on occasion there is a need to apply market supplements to roles in order to offer 

a competitive salary that is attractive to applicants.  Examples of this are roles 

within Environmental Health where there is a lot of competition amongst 

neighbouring councils. 

 

2.28 Salary benchmarking provides useful evidence to determine whether our job 

evaluated salary for a role is competitive against the market.  It is also a useful 

tool for managers in developing a business case to apply a market supplement to 

a role. 

 

2.29 The Council’s Pay Policy Statement makes reference to market supplements but 

does not include detailed guidance.   

 

2.30 It is proposed to develop a market supplement procedure which will include 

guidance on the benchmarking required to support a request for the application of 

a market supplement.  This guidance will need to be kept under review to 

incorporate any key factors from the joint working with other councils on market 

supplements. 

 

2.31  The implementation of a market supplement procedure includes the requirement 

for documented evidence and a business case to support the request for a market 

supplement to be applied to a role.  This should ensure consistency and fairness 

in the application of market supplements.  

 

2.32 Preliminary work has begun on developing a market supplement procedure and 

it is also proposed to share this with the pay review sub-group looking at this 

area to obtain their feedback. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 This report is for noting and therefore there are no key areas for Members to 

consider. 

 

4. Consultation 
 

4.1 Consultation has taken place through the setting up of the Pay Review Working 

Group and sub-groups.   

26



 

4.2 Consultation will take place at the appropriate stage with the Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Waste and the Section 151 Officer in respect of budget implications. 

 

4.2 Regular consultation takes place with the Trade Unions about the Pay Review 

through the Joint Consultative and Negotiating Committee (JCNC). 

 

5. Appendices 
 

5.1 Appendix A - Pay Review Action Plan 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

27



This page is intentionally left blank



PAY REVIEW ACTION PLAN 

The use of career grades to attract talent to the organisation and provide development opportunities and progression to develop and retain 
rising stars.   
Action: 

• Develop career pathways, including key professional pathways – for example, Environmental Health Officer, Development Management Planner 
Officer, Accountant 

• Identify relevant professional roles to fit to career progression template 
 

Update August 2022 

• Vacant Senior/Environmental Health Officer role advertised as a career development opportunity 

• Work underway to produce draft career grade strategy and career progression template  

• Vacant administrative posts being used to create administrative apprenticeships operating on a rotation basis across a number of service areas  
 

 

A review of the lower range of pay grades to ensure that there is clear differentiation between the grades, based on the 2022 Real Living Wage 
rate. 
Action: 

• Modelling removal of the lowest scale points in order to create more differentiation between grades in the bottom scales 
 

 

Analysis of similar roles across the organisation to identify any inconsistencies between pay grades.  Consideration to be given to the setting 
of salary bands for different levels e.g. senior officer, 1st line manager, team leader, service manager.   

Action: 

• Analysis of line manager roles across the organisation to identify any areas of inconsistency and categorise different levels of line manager roles within 
relevant pay bands. 

 
Update August 2022 

• Analysis completed and update included in report to the Employment Committee. 
 

 

29



Develop a consistent process for the benchmarking of roles, particularly those which are hard to recruit to.  Consideration could be given to 
using job evaluation in conjunction with salary benchmarking, and the use of external benchmarking tools.  to provide meaningful evidence to 
support pay decisions. 

Action: 

• Training for managers and HR team on job evaluation process 

• Update job evaluation procedure and documentation 

• Develop market supplement process for hard to recruit to roles 

• Set up in house benchmarking database 
 
Update August 2022 

• Draft Job Evaluation procedure developed – to be shared with Pay Review Working Group for feedback 

• Job evaluation training arranged for October 2022 – will include a representative from each directorate who will sit on job evaluation panels and 
appeals 

• Draft market supplement developed to provide guidance on process to be followed – to be shared with Pay Review Working Group for feedback 
 

 

30



1 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Equality Impact 
(Initial Analysis) 

 
 

Pay Review 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Area: 
 
Human Resources 
 
 

Lead officer: 
Fran Beckitt 
  

Date of Meeting  
 
08/07/22 

Assessors: 
 
 

Neutral Assessor: 
Sam Fitt 

 

1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy 
 
 

31



2 

 

Review of current pay structure and grades, looking at work that is taking 
place to address any issues, both legacy issues, and new ones arising 
from external factors. 
 
The review will look at 4 key areas regarding pay, as agreed by the 
Employment Committee.  
 

- The use of career grades to attract talent to the organisation and 
provide development opportunities and progression to develop and 
retain rising stars.  This work will need to be linked to the training 
budget to ensure that we can deliver what is in career development 
plans 

- A review of the lower range of pay grades to ensure that there is 
clear differentiation between the grades, based on the 2022 Real 
Living Wage rate.  

- Analysis of similar roles across the organisation to identify any 
inconsistencies between pay grades.  Consideration to be given to 
the setting of salary bands for different levels e.g. senior officer, 1st 
line manager, team leader, service manager.  This would help to 
demonstrate fairness and consistency between pay grades across 
the whole organisation. Salary bands are already in place for Head 
of Service roles and above. 

- Develop a consistent process for the benchmarking of roles, 
particularly those which are hard to recruit to.  Consideration could 
be given to using job evaluation in conjunction with salary 
benchmarking, and the use of external benchmarking tools to 
provide meaningful evidence to support pay decisions. 

 
 
The drivers for this review are: 
 

- The lack of external market competitiveness in some hard-to-recruit 
areas 

- The lack of incentive and recognition of higher contributors ‘who go 
the extra mile’ 

- The current pay structure does not deliver competitive levels of pay 
for some key roles 

- Ensuring that pay grades are equitable to reduce the potential for 
unconscious bias in recruitment 

 
SKDC’s pay structure is based on single point salaries with no 
opportunities for progression.  This differs from the majority of Local 
Government employers which have grades within pay bands.   
 
The findings of the 2018 staff survey indicated that over a third of 
employees did not feel that hard work and good performance were  
recognised at the Council and that staff are paid fairly for the job they do. 

 
 
 

32



3 

 

Is this a new or existing policy?  New  
 
2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy could have any potential positive,  or 
negative impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) listed, using demographic data, user surveys, local 
consultations evaluation forms, comments and complaints etc. 

 

 
 
Equality Group 

Does this 
policy/service/function/strat
egy have a positive or 
negative impact on any of 
the equality groups?  
 
Please state which for each 
group 

Please describe why the 
impact is positive or 
negative. 
If you consider this policy 
etc is not relevant to a 
specific characteristic 
please explain why   

Age 
 
 

Positive The review will look at grades 
across the entire structure, and 
also look at developmental 
grades. This will have a 
positive impact on younger 
members of staff who are 
starting out and looking to 
develop careers, as there will 
be a clear and fair pay 
structure attached to this. It will 
also be positive for older 
members of staff who have 
had time to develop and 
achieve qualifications, as 
again there will be a shared 
pay structure to reflect this. 
The review will also make the 
Council more competitive and 
in line with regional/national 
pay, which will make the 
Council a more attractive place 
to work for all age groups.  

Disability 
 

 

Neutral The review will not solely affect 
this equality group in a 
negative or positive way. The 
review looks at roles and the 
structure of pay, not 
individuals. There are robust 
HR processes, procedures and 
external legislation that is 
followed to make sure that no 
one in the equality group is 
negatively affected with 
regards to pay.  

33



4 

 

Race 
 

Neutral The review will not solely affect 
this equality group in a 
negative or positive way. The 
review looks at roles and the 
structure of pay, not 
individuals. There are robust 
HR processes, procedures and 
external legislation that is 
followed to make sure that no 
one in the quality group is 
negatively affected with 
regards to pay. 

Gender 
Reassignment 
 
   

Neutral The review will not solely affect 
this equality group in a 
negative or positive way. The 
review looks at roles and the 
structure of pay, not 
individuals. There are robust 
HR processes, procedures and 
external legislation that is 
followed to make sure that no 
one in the quality group is 
negatively affected with 
regards to pay. 

Religion or 
Belief   

Neutral The review will not solely affect 
this equality group in a 
negative or positive way. The 
review looks at roles and the 
structure of pay, not 
individuals. There are robust 
HR processes, procedures and 
external legislation that is 
followed to make sure that no 
one in the quality group is 
negatively affected with 
regards to pay. 

Sex 
 
 
   

Neutral Review of pay in relation to 
sex/gender is already covered 
by the Gender Pay Gap 
reports, with the previous 
report showing even more 
improvements in terms of 
balancing pay between men 
and women. There are no 
gender pay gap related issues 
at SKDC and this review does 
nothing to alter that. The 
review looks at roles, not 
people. The Council has an 
established job evaluation 

34



5 

 

process that determines pay 
grade based on role therefore 
reducing the possibility of 
salary being influenced by the 
sex/gender of the person 
carrying out the role. All 
reviews and changes to 
process as part of this project 
will continually monitor for any 
unintentional impacts in 
relation to the protected 
characteristic and ensure this 
doesn’t happen.  
The Council will also continue 
to monitor and ensure there is 
no negative impact on roles 
where there is a predominately 
higher sex in one area, e.g. 
our lowest grade is for 
cleaning staff – predominately 
staffed by women. The review 
will work to ensure that there 
isn’t any impact on these roles 
in a negative way, or that there 
are any other inconsistencies 
regarding pay throughout.  

Sexual 
Orientation 
 

Neutral The review will not solely affect 
this equality group in a 
negative or positive way. The 
review looks at roles and the 
structure of pay, not 
individuals. There are robust 
HR processes, procedures and 
external legislation that is 
followed to make sure that no 
one in the quality group is 
negatively affected with 
regards to pay. 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 
 
 

Neutral . The review will include 
looking at career grade roles, 
which we will continually 
monitor to ensure it does not 
impact on those taking time off 
for pregnancy and maternity. 
This review will look at any 
issues that may arise and will 
address them to ensure 
fairness and equality. There 
are robust HR processes, 
procedures and external 

35



6 

 

legislation that is followed to 
make sure that no one in the 
quality group is negatively 
affected with regards to pay. 

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership 

Neutral The review will not solely affect 
this equality group in a 
negative or positive way. The 
review looks at roles and the 
structure of pay, not 
individuals. There are robust 
HR processes, procedures and 
external legislation that is 
followed to make sure that no 
one in the quality group is 
negatively affected with 
regards to pay. 

Carers Neutral The review will not solely affect 
this equality group in a 
negative or positive way. The 
review looks at roles and the 
structure of pay, not 
individuals. There are robust 
HR processes, procedures and 
external legislation that is 
followed to make sure that no 
one in the quality group is 
negatively affected with 
regards to pay. 

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past) 
 
*(IMD = Indices 
of multiple 
deprivation) 
 

Neutral  

36



7 

 

General 
comments 

The review will continually look at any potential impact and that 
there aren’t inconsistencies that could be linked to any protected 
characteristics, in line with HR policies and legislation.  

 
 
3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 

the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings) 

 

The HR department is able to look at the equality data for all employees at 
the Council, however this review is not introducing something that will 
affect the equality groups, it is looking 4 key areas with regards to pay and 
making the Council a more competitive, attractive place to work, and 
recognising staff. No equality group is being targeted or greatly affected by 
this review, therefore no equality data was needed to be collected.  

 
If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed? 

 
  

 

 
 
4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 

required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 
Please check one of the options.    

 

a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any 
potential for discrimination or for negative impact and all 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken 

 

   

If you have checked option a) you can now send this form to the Lead 
Officer and your Neutral Assessor for sign off 

   

b) Adjust the proposal to remove barriers identified by equality 
analysis or to better promote equality.  

 

   

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 
and b.2  

   

c) Adverse impact but continue  

   

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1 

37



8 

 

   

d Stop and remove the policy/function/service/strategy as equality 
analysis has shown actual or potential unlawful 

 

 
b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts? 

 
  

 

 
 
b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 

changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.   

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis 

 
c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 

justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy. 

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact. 
 
 

 
 

Signed (Lead Officer):    Click here to enter text. 
(Name and title)   Click here to enter text. 
  

Date completed:  Click here to enter a date.  
 
Signed (Neutral Assessor):  Sam Fitt 
(Name and title)   Project Lead 
 

Date signed off:     14/07/22  
 

38



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

21 September 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Annie Mason, 
Cabinet Member for People & Safer 
Communities 
 
 

 

 

Corporate Values Update 
 

Report Author 

 

   Fran.beckitt@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with an update on 

the refresh of South Kesteven District Council’s corporate values.  

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Employment Committee: 

 

1. Notes the update on South Kesteven’s corporate values. 

2. Advises how the committee and councillors would like to be involved in the 
development of the new corporate values. 

 

 

 

 

 

39

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

 

 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.1  Inclusive behaviours and values of the Council are important and this topic 

therefore features in the discussions about what our corporate values should be. 

When identified, the new values will reinforce our commitment to diversity and 

inclusion. 

 

 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.2  Organisational values impact employee’s mental health and wellbeing as they set 

the tone for our culture and help create a unified direction for the workforce of 

what matters to the Council and our people. When identified, the new values will 

support a culture of appreciation, psychological safety and self-care. These are all 

components of mentally healthy work cultures.  

 

 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  On 2 August 2022, we held our third People Panel meeting which involved 25 

officers from teams across the Council.  

 

40



2.2 At the meeting, we launched a refresh of South Kesteven District Council’s 

corporate values.  

 

2.3.  Our current corporate values are: Accountability, Flexibility, Agility, Equity, 

Networking, Always learning and Talent.  

 

2.4 Our values should be a fundamental part of SKDC’s identity. They should be 

meaningful to our people and lay the foundation for what we care about most.  

 

 

Approach to developing the new corporate values 

 

2.5  We are taking an organisation-wide, employee-led approach. 

 

2.6  We began by gaining a better understanding of how our people relate to our 

existing values. We found many do not know what our current values are and did 

not feel connected to them or feel they reflect our culture.  

 

2.7  To start to develop the conversation about what values would be meaningful, the 

People Panel held group discussions covering: 

  - What makes them proud to work for SKDC. 

- What is important to SKDC and what are our strengths as an organisation. 

- What is important to them at work. 

 

2.8  From this discussion, we picked out key themes and created a survey for the 

People Panel to vote for the values that were most meaningful to them.  

 

Next steps 

 

2.9  Following the session, the People Panel members took the discussion back to 

their teams to get input from as many employees as we can. They have a brief 

which provides positioning on why we are refreshing the values, questions to start 

a debate with their teams and then the online survey which asks employees to 

vote on which values are most meaningful to them.  

 

2.10  At the next People Panel meeting on 2 October 2022, we will bring all the 

discussion together and use everyone’s feedback to start identifying what the new 

corporate values could be. 

 

2.11 Member involvement in this process is important. Councillors are a key part of 

SKDC and advocate what our community needs from their council. A key next 

step will therefore be the involvement of members in the process which could, for 

example, consist of a ‘Values Workshop’ with the Employment Committee and 

representatives from the wider Councillor network.  

 

41



2.12  Upon determining what the new corporate values will be, we will delve further into 

what these mean for our people, Councillors and the community as well as 

planning the launch of these values.  

 

2.13  It is important the new values are meaningful and embedded across the 

organisation. These will therefore underpin policies, corporate plans and provide a 

framework for ‘the #TeamSK way’.  

 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 It is suggested that a ‘Values Workshop’ is held with members of the Employment 

Committee and representatives from the wider Councillor network to attain views 

on what is important to SKDC and the community, and therefore help to shape the 

new values.  

 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 Views from Councillors could be gathered using methods such as interviews, 

surveys, via email etc.  

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 A workshop would be an effective way to gather insights from the Committee 

and/or Councillors on what they think is most important to South Kesteven District 

Council and therefore what they feel our corporate values should be. 

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 The People Panel are heavily involved and everyone across the Council has been 

invited to give their feedback on corporate values. Our Union Representatives are 

also involved in this activity.  

 

7. Appendices 
 

7.1 Appendix – Corporate Values Slides 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



#TeamSK Values
September 2022

43



Our values

Our current values are:

Accountability, Flexibility, Agility, Equity, 
Networking, Always learning and Talent. 

The feedback is that many employees do not 
know what the current values are, they do not all 

resonate with our people and they are not 
embedded. 

SKDC Current Values…

Feedback on 
existing values

People 
Panel 

discussion

A fundamental part of the Council’s identity

Be meaningful and authentic

Resonate with colleagues 

Lay the foundation for what the Council cares 
about most

Provide a benchmark for new employees

Underpin our policies, procedures and the way we 
do things

What values should be…

Values 
survey

Company-
wide 

discussion

Councillors
Feedback

Launch Embed

Our approach…

44



Discussions to start to 
explore what’s important…

Involving our people across the 
Council with discussions about our 

values and a survey which asks 
them to rank importance of potential 

values.

45



Some feedback so far…

At #TeamSK, we…

• Work together
• Are forward thinking
• Positive
• Make it happen
• Are flexible
• Are diverse
• Trust each other
• Want to make a difference
• Are innovative
• Do it together
• Are honest
• Respect each other
• Are fair
• Are accountable
• Celebrate success
• Are kind
• Develop and grow
• Value everyone
• Listen
• Show empathy

I’m proud to work for a not 
for profit – I’m proud that 

we make a difference.

Feeling empowered makes 
a massive difference to the 

work we do.

We need to always strive 
to do what we say we’re 

going to do.

The #TeamSK Way…

Trust is vital. I feel my 
manager trusts me, but 
gaining the community’s 
trust is also important. 

I feel SKDC is a force for 
good. We’re making the 

community a better place 
and making a difference to 

people. 

46



Next steps

• Member involvement in this process is important. Councillors are a key part 
of SKDC and advocate what our community needs from their Council. 

• A key next step will therefore be the involvement of members in the process.

• This could be a ‘Values Workshop’ with Employment Committee and/or 
representatives from the wider Councillor network and we would welcome 

views on this. 

Feedback on 
existing values

People 
Panel 

discussion

Values 
survey

Company-
wide 

discussion

Councillors
Feedback

Launch Embed

47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

21 September 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Annie Mason, 
Cabinet Member for People & Safer 
Communities 
 
 

 

 

Induction Update 
 

Report Author 

Fran Beckitt (HR Manager) 

   fran.beckitt@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with an update on 

South Kesteven District Council’s induction process.  

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Employment Committee: 

 

1. Notes the update on South Kesteven’s induction process.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

49

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no financial implications.  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 There are compliance implications related to corporate inductions i.e. areas that 

we must continue to cover to ensure our new starters are aware of legal and 

Council requirements (for example GDPR, Health and Safety, whistleblowing, 

fraud and risk). These are being reviewed as part of the revised induction 

procedure and new processes will improve compliance and completion in these 

areas.   

 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.3  The revised process will continue to ensure diversity and inclusion for our new 

starters as well as providing training on the subject as part of the induction 

process.  

 

 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.4  The induction process will highlight how our workplace values employee wellbeing 

and mental health. It will ensure new starters know where to go for support and 

also how to support their colleagues. This includes completing e-learning related 

to this topic within their first few weeks with the Council.  

50



 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  An employee’s first impressions of an organisation are important to their 

integration within the Council and affects their job satisfaction, performance and 

engagement levels.  

 

2.2  Attrition levels are at their highest with new starters than with longer lengths of 

service therefore highlighting the importance of a good onboarding experience.   

 

2.3 Induction is an opportunity for South Kesteven District Council to welcome new 

recruits, help them settle in and ensure they have knowledge and support they 

need to perform in their role. 

 

2.4 Feedback from recent starters and our People Panel indicates there is an 

opportunity to improve the way we induct our new starters. The feedback 

particularly highlights that new recruits do not feel they necessarily get to know 

about the wider Council and what other teams do.  

 

Revised Induction Process 

 

2.5  The revised SKDC induction process will include: 

 

Electronic brochure Sent to individuals before they start as an introduction 
to SKDC. 

Invite for a pre-start 
date tour 

Line managers to invite new starters to visit the office, 
have a tour and meet the team prior to their start date.  

HR induction part 1 A meeting with a member of the HR team within the 
first two weeks of joining the Council. This will include 
an overview of HR related processes and systems eg. 
iTrent, flexitime, key policies etc.  
 

HR induction part 2 A meeting with a member of the HR team at 3 months 
to ‘check-in’ on how the new starter is getting on and 
support with any questions or concerns they may 
have. 
 

Corporate Induction Within the first three months of employment (please 
see point 2.6 below).  
 

New starter breakfast 
club 

Gathering for new starters in the kitchen area. Other 
colleagues to be invited to join as an opportunity to 
meet new starters. 

E-learning A new e-learning package which covers some key 
areas GDPR 
 

51



A revised induction 
journey 

An updated induction pack and guidance for managers 
to support them with the process. This includes more 
activities to get to know other teams and what the 
wider Council does as well as clearer guidance on new 
starter processes.  

 

 

2.6 The new corporate induction has been introduced and the first session took 

place on 5 September 2022. This was attended by 20 new starters and the 

agenda included: 

• A welcome from our Chief Executive, Karen Bradford 

• Updates from member of the Corporate Management Team on what their 

Directorates cover and what their priorities are. 

• Sessions to get to know each other including a #TeamSK quiz.  

• An overview of the political environment  

• Reflections on their onboarding experience.  

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 The People Panel continue to be involved in the design of the new process and 

new starters have been asked to give feedback and suggestions from their 

experience. Our union representatives have also been involved in this work.   

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

52



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

21 September 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Annie Mason, 
Cabinet Member for People and Safer 
Communities 
 
 

 

 

Pensions Policy Statement & Pensions 

Discretions Procedure 

Report Author 

Jane Jenkinson, Senior HR Officer 

  Jane.Jenkinson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of the report is to present a draft updated Pensions Policy Statement and 

Pensions Discretions Procedure for consideration by the Employment Committee and 

seek approval for delegation.  

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee: 

1. Approves the changes to the Pensions Policy Statement and Pensions 
Policy Discretion Procedure. 

2. Delegates to the Deputy Chief Executive for minor legislative changes to 
the Pensions Policy Statement and Pensions Policy Procedure. 

 

 

 

 

53

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no financial implications arising from the proposed changes. 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 The changes to the policy statement and procedure are necessary to ensure 

compliance with statutory requirements. 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1 There is a requirement on employers to formulate, publish and keep under review 

a policy statement in relation to the exercise of a number of discretions under the 

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  The statement relates to the 

application of discretions under:  

- The LGPS Regulations 2013 

- The LGPS (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 

2014 (‘LGPS Transitional Regulations 2014’); and 

- The LGPS Regulations 1997 and LGPS Regulations 2007 

2.2 The LGPS Regulations specify that employers are required to make and publish a 

policy statement on how they will exercise a number of discretions.  The following 

are specific mandatory discretions that the Council must adopt:  

- Regulation 16 Shared cost Additional Pension Contributions 

- Regulation 30 (6) & 32 (4) Flexible Retirement 

54



- Regulation 30 (8) Actuarial Reductions 

- Regulation 31 Award of Additional Pension 

- Swtiching on the 85 Rule – Regulation 1(1)(c) 

- Early Payment of Deferred Pensions 

- Early Payment of Deferred Pensions for members who have ceased to be 

entitled to a tier 3 ill health benefit 

2.3 The Council’s Pensions Policy Statement was last updated in 2017.   

2.4 The changes to the Pensions Policy Statement are minor changes to wording to 

reflect statutory requirements and have been provided to us by West Yorkshire 

Pension Fund, the pension scheme administrators.  A copy of the Pensions Policy 

Statement is attached to this report at Appendix 1 and the changes highlighted 

with tracked changes. 

2.5 The changes to the Pensions Policy Discretion Procedure are minor changes to 

wording to reflect statutory requirements and have been provided to us by West 

Yorkshire Pension Fund, the pension scheme administrators.  Changes have also 

been made to reflect organisational structure and job title changes.  A copy of the 

Pensions Policy Statement is attached to this report at Appendix 2 and the 

changes highlighted with tracked changes. 

2.6 All discretions will continue to be dealt with in accordance with the Principles of 

the Pensions Policy Statement.  Decisions on whether to exercise any discretion 

should be made on a case by case basis. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 Employment Committee are asked to approve the changes to the Pensions Policy 

Statement and Pensions Policy Discretions Procedure to ensure compliance with 

statutory requirements. 

3.2 Employment Committee are also asked to delegate approval of future minor 

changes to the Pensions Policy Statement and Pensions Policy Discretions 

Procedure to the Deputy Chief Executive in consultation with the Cabinet Member 

for People and Safer Communities. 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 No other options were considered as the recommendations are necessary to 

comply with statutory requirements. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 The reason for the recommendations is to ensure that the Pensions Policy 

Statement and Pensions Policy Discretion Procedure are up to date and comply 

with statutory requirements. 

55



6. Appendices 
 

6.1 Appendix 1 - Draft Pensions Policy Statement 2022 

 

6.2 Appendix 2 – Draft Pensions Policy Discretions Procedure 2022 

 

 

56



Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pensions Policy 

Statement 

2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57



2 
 

Introduction  

1.1. The Council’s pension policy complies with the regulations relating to the 

Local Government Pension Scheme 2014. It defines the employer discretions in 

the regulations and clarifies the councils approach to the different retirement 

options.  

2. Scope 

2.1. The policy applies to all members of staff who are eligible to be members of 

the local government pension scheme, as defined in the regulations.  

2.2. Currently they are employees with a contract of employment of over 3 

month’s duration and who are under 75 years of age.  

3. Objectives  

3.1. This policy clarifies the Council’s position on the discretions it can exercise 

in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme 2014 regulations and 

guidance how they apply to different retirement options.  

3.2. It also provides clear guiding principles to assist decision making given that 

the consideration of an employee’s retirement, in a range of circumstances, will 

be considered on its own merits on a case by case basis, and taking account of 

business needs.  

4. Principles  

4.1. The Council will treat each individual retirement case and decision on its 

merits.  

 

4.2. Decisions relating to retirement will be made taking into account the 

business case and business implications, the financial implications, employment 

law considerations, the regulations and the legality of each case. It may also 

take into account long term savings, affordability, skills, skills retention and 

impact on service delivery.  

 

4.3. The definition of business efficiency shall include, but not be limited to 

financial savings and / or quality improvements judged on a case by case basis. 

As a general principle the Council requires a reduction in working hours or a 

significant reduction in grade for an efficiency to be considered material in 

flexible retirement requests.  

 

4.4. Each decision will be made free from discrimination on the grounds of any 

protected characteristic - age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage or civil 

partnership, pregnancy & maternity, race, religion and belief, sex, sexual 

orientation or any other personal criteria. 

 

58



3 
 

4.5. The Councils decisions relating to retirement and the release of a pension 

will be in line with the current pension regulations. These regulations may be 

updated from time to time and the Council’s policy is to default to the 

regulations if the policy is not explicit on any current or future regulation.  

  

4.6. Decisions relating to retirement for any current employee will be based on 

the regulations in place at the time of the decision and will incorporate any 

relevant transitional arrangements that are put in place in relation to the pre 

2008 scheme and the new look 2008 – 2013 scheme. 

 

4.7. Decisions relating to the release of deferred benefits to former employees 

will refer to the relevant pension policies applicable to their pre 2014 service. In 

all such cases, the decision as to the release of deferred benefits will be on a 

case by case basis and will take into account the criteria detailed in the 

principles, particularly principle 2. Guidance may be sought from the pension 

administrators as required.  

4.8. The Council will apply the nationally determined employee contribution rates 

and bands. These are subject to an annual review and may be varied.  

 

4.9. Employees who are members of the pension scheme are only entitled to 

receive pension benefits if they have 2 years or more service. If an employee 

leaves within 2 years of the start of their employment, they will get their 

contributions refunded if they are not moving onto another local government 

post.  

 

4.10. Compassionate grounds are defined as: situations of severe personal 

distress resulting from non financial circumstances affecting the individual or 

close family member (e.g. partner/spouse/child/parent) leading to unavoidable 

financial hardship.  

 

4.11. The Council will pay the rate of contributions determined in the regulations 

for employees whose pay is reduced through ill health or during authorised 

unpaid leave, including child related leave.  

 

  

59



4 
 

4.13. The Council will apply the relevant transitional arrangements for the LGPS 

2014 and for pre 2014 service, the relevant rule of 85 protections in line with 

the regulations and discretion 5.15. 

 

Pension Arrangements  

The Council, as the scheme employer will exercise its discretions under the 

regulations as detailed in Appendix 1.  

The council recognises that there are a number of retirement options and its 

approach is detailed in Appendix 2.  

 

  

60



5 
 

Appendix 1  

5. Discretions  

Within the regulations there are a number of discretionary statements that 

require the Council to explicitly state their position. The discretions detailed 

below relate to the current LGPS 2014 regulations and guidance. They also 

reflect discretions approved by the Council for the previous pension scheme 

policies.  These should be read alongside the principles in section 4 and the 

pensions options in Appendix 2.  

 

5.1 Determining and reviewing an employee’s contribution band - 

Regulation 9 and Regulation 10 LGPS Regulations 2013  

 

5.1.1. The Council will use the contribution rate defined in the regulations and 

apply it to staff who are members of the pension scheme in accordance with 

their pensionable pay.  

5.1.2. Where an employee has variable pensionable pay throughout the year, 

the Council will determine the contribution rate based on the total pensionable 

pay of the previous year and guidance from the relevant line manager and will 

regularly review the contribution rate to ensure the correct rate is being applied.  

5.1.3. Where an employee changes their employment within the Council and 

there is a material change to their pensionable pay during a year (working hours 

and / or grade), the Council will change the employee’s contribution rate when 

the material change takes effect. 

 

5.2 Regulation 16 Shared cost Additional Pension Contributions (APC’s) 

(2) (e), (4) (d)   

 

5.2.1 The Council does not consider contribution towards additional pension 

contributions to be an essential part of its employment strategy. However, the 

Council will consider applications made under these specific provisions having 

regard to the Council’s general policy from time to time, on the pay policy 

statement and the particular circumstances surrounding each case.  

It is likely that decisions will be made on the merits of each case having particular 

regard to factors such as: 

• the Council’s ability to meet the cost of granting such a request  

• the operating requirements of the organisation existing, and 
reasonably foreseeable at the time of the request and/or  

• the member’s personal circumstances. 

 
 

 

61



6 
 

5.3 Regulation 17 Shared Cost Additional Voluntary Contributions 

(AVC’s) 

 

5.3.1. The Council will not exercise its discretion to contribute towards a SCAVC 

arrangement.  

 

5.4 Regulation 19 Death in Service Payment of Contributions  

 

5.4.1. The Council may, under regulation 19 (2) direct the payment of the whole 

or part of the late employees contributions to the pension scheme to them (their 

estate), their spouse, civil partner, cohabiting partner or any of their 

dependents.  

 

5.5. Regulation 22 Aggregation of benefits  

  

5.5.1. The Council will adopt the 12 month deadline in line with regulation 22 (7) 

(b) and 22 (8) (b) on the cessation of a concurrent employment and when a 

deferred member of the pension scheme becomes an active member of the 

pension scheme and wishes to aggregate their benefits.   

 

5.6 Regulation 30 (6) & 32 (4) Flexible retirement   

 

5.6.1. The Council will consider applications made under this Regulation having 

regard to the particular circumstances surrounding each case. Decisions will be 

made on the merits of each case having particular regard to: 

• the Council’s ability to meet the cost of granting such a request 

• the operating requirements of the employing department 
• whether any demonstrable cost saving in excess of potential savings 

available under any severance arrangements in place from time to 

time can be made 
• the member’s personal circumstances 

• whether to permit the member to choose to draw all, part or none of 
the pensions benefits they have built up after 1 April 2008.   

 

5.6.2. The payment of flexible retirement pension scheme benefits will become 

payable on the date of the reduction in hours &/or grade in line with Regulation 

32 (4).  

 

5.7Regulation 30 (8) Actuarial Reductions.  

 

5.7.1. The Council will consider applications made under this Regulation having 

regard to the particular circumstances surrounding each case. Decisions will be 

made on the merits of each case having particular regard to:  

• the Council's ability to meet the cost of granting such a request  

62



7 
 

• whether any demonstrable cost saving in excess of potential savings 
available under any severance arrangements in place from time to time 

can be made 
• the member's personal circumstances.  

 
5.7.2 Applications for the payment of unreduced benefits for service before 1 April 

2014 on the grounds of compassion will be granted if: 

• in the Council's sole opinion, the special extenuating circumstances 

surrounding the application, along with the supporting evidence provided 
justify approval and  

• the Council can meet the cost of granting such a request.  

 

 

5.8 Regulation 31 Award of Additional Pension  

 

5.8.1. The Council will consider applications made under this Regulation having 

regard to the particular circumstances surrounding each case. Decisions will be 

made on the merits of each case having particular regard to the following: 

• the member’s personal circumstances 
• the interests of the Council 

• the additional contributions due to the Fund by the Council in respect of 
the exercise of this discretion 

• any potential benefits or savings to the Council arising from the exercise 
of this discretion 

• other options that are, from time to time, available under the Council’s 

severance arrangements 
• the funding position of the Council within the Fund   

• the ability of the Council to meet the cost of granting such an award. 
 

5.9 Regulation 36 (1) Ill health retirement benefits  

 

5.9.1.The Council will reach a decision regarding the early payment of pension 

benefits  and the tier payable after it has received the certificate and  

information provided by the Independent Registered Medical Practitioner.   

 

5.10 Regulation 37 Arrangements regarding Tier 3 ill health benefits  

 

5.10.1 When an employee has received tier 3 ill health benefits and is able to 

resume employment, it is for the Council to decide whether that employment is 

“gainful employment” and is likely to continue for at least 12 months. If so, the 

Council must authorise the cessation of tier 3 ill health benefit payments in line 

with regulation 37 (3) and 37 (4). It will consider each case on a case by case 

basis taking into account the regulations, guidance, the principles and the known 

facts. 

 

63



8 
 

5.10.2. Where an employee has been in receipt of tier 3 benefits the Council will 

ask for a review by an independent registered medical practitioner and may, 

based on the certification and information provided, decide to continue the tier 3 

benefits up to the maximum of 3 years payable, award a tier 2 ill health pension 

release or cease the payment of benefits.  

5.10.3. In the event that a tier 3 pension is in payment to a former employee or 

within 3 years of the cessation of such payments, the former employee can 

request a review of their ill health retirement benefits and the council may 

decide to award a release of pension benefits at tier 2 following review by an 

independent registered medical practitioner. The council’s decision will be based 

on the certification and information provided in line with regulation 37 (10), the 

principles and known facts.  

 

5.11. Regulation 38 Ill health retirement – deferred members and 

deferred pensioner members  

 

5.11.1. Written requests for early release of pension benefits from deferred 

pension scheme members or deferred pensioner members may be considered by 

the Council in line with regulation 38.  

 

5.11.2. These requests will be subject to referral to an Independent registered 

medical practitioner and the Council will reach a decision based on their 

certification, the information provided and the principles.  

  

5.12 Regulation 74 (1) Appointment of Adjudicator  

 

5.12.1. The Council will designate the Chief Financial Officer as its adjudicator 

for appeals against retirement decisions. The Council reserves the right to 

nominate another Director or senior manager to act as adjudicator to cover for 

absence and to ensure fair consideration of any appeal.  

 

5.13. Regulation 85 Deduction and recovery of member contributions  

 

5.13.1 The Council will adopt the discretion to deduct and recover from an 

employee’s pay any contributions payable by the pension scheme member under 

the regulations.  

 

5.14 Regulation 91(1) Forfeiture of pension rights after conviction for 

employment related offences 

 

5.14.1 The Council will adopt the discretion to apply to the Secretary of State for 

a forfeiture certificate if an employee who is a member of the pension scheme is 

convicted of a relevant offence committed during their employment and for 

which they left their employment.  

 

64



9 
 

5.14.2. This discretion will be exercised in line with the regulations. In such 

circumstances the Council will adopt those discretions detailed in regulation 91 

(7), 93(1), 93(2) to mitigate any loss subject to the protection of guaranteed 

minimum pension rights detailed on regulation 95.  

 

5.15 LGPS (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) 

Regulations 2013 85 year rule benefits and voluntary retirements 

between the ages of 55 and 60  

 

5.15.1The Council will not adopt the discretion to apply the 85 year rule to the 

pre 1st. April 2014 benefits of a scheme member wishing to voluntarily draw 

benefits on or after age 55 – and before the age of 60.  

 

5.15.2 The Council may adopt the discretion to apply the 85 year rule to the pre 

1st. April 2014 benefits of a scheme member wishing to retire on compassionate 

grounds. Consideration of such cases will be on a case by case basis taking into 

account the principles detailed in section 4 of the policy.  

 

5.16 Switching on the 85 rule – Regulation 1(1)(c) of the LGPS  

Transitional Regulations 2014 

5.16.1 The Council will consider applications made under this Regulation having 

regard to the particular circumstances surrounding each case. Decisions will be 

made on the merits of each case having particular regard to:  

• the Council's ability to meet the cost of granting such a request  
• whether any demonstrable cost saving in excess of potential savings 

available under any severance arrangements in place from time to time can 

be made 
• the member's personal circumstances.   

 

5.17 Early Payment of Deferred Pensions for members who left before 

1st April 2014 – Regulation 2 of the LGPS (Transitional Provisions, 

Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014, Regulation 30(2) and 30(5) 

of the LGPS Benefits Regulations 2007 & Regulation 31(2) and 

Regulation 31(5) of the LGPS Regulations 1997 

5.17.1 The Council will consider applications made under this Regulation having 

regard to the particular circumstances surrounding each case. Decisions will be 

made on the merits of each case having particular regard to:  

• the Council's ability to meet the cost of granting such a request  
• the member's personal circumstances. 

 
Applications for the payment of unreduced benefits on the grounds of 
compassion will be granted if: 

 

65



10 
 

• in the Council's sole opinion, the special extenuating circumstances 
surrounding the application, along with the supporting evidence 

provided justify approval and  
• the Council can meet the cost of granting such a request.  

 

5.18 Early Payment of Deferred Pensions for members who left before 

1st April 2014 and have ceased to be entitled to a tier 3 ill health benefit 

– Regulation 2 of the LGPS (Transitional Provisions, Savings and 

Amendment) Regulations 2014, Regulation 30A(3) and 30A(5) of the 

LGPS Benefits Regulations 2007. 

5.18.1 The Council will consider applications made under this Regulation having 

regard to the particular circumstances surrounding each case. Decisions will be 

made on the merits of each case having particular regard to: 

• the Council's ability to meet the cost of granting such a request  
• the member's personal circumstances.  

 

Applications for the payment of unreduced benefits on the grounds of compassion 

will be granted if: 

• in the Council's sole opinion, the special extenuating circumstances 
surrounding the application, along with the supporting evidence provided 
justify approval and  

• the Council can meet the cost of granting such a request. 

  

66



11 
 

 

 

Appendix 2 
 

6 PENSION OPTIONS  

 

6.1. Retirement at Normal Pension Age 

6.1.1. The LGPS 2014 defines the normal pension age for each member as equal 

to their state pension age, subject to a minimum age of 65.  At the employees 

normal pension age their pension benefits are paid unreduced and will be based 

on their Career Average Re-valued contributions in their pension account for 

service after 01.04.2014.  

6.1.2. The accrual rate for contributions after this date is currently 1/49th.  of 

pensionable pay and the Council will pay employee contributions and employer 

contributions to the pension scheme administers in line with the regulations and 

the triennial reviews.   

6.1.3. All pension contributions paid into the local government pension scheme 

before 01.04.2014 are fully protected in line with the transitional arrangements.  

6.2 Late Retirement  

6.2.1. Employees who are members of the pension scheme who work beyond 

their normal pension age will receive enhanced benefits in line with the 

Government Actuaries Department guidance and the regulations.  

6.3 Retirement below normal pension age 

6.3.1. The LGPS 2014 regulation 30 (5) permits current employees to choose to 

take their retirement pensions from age 55. This election is without employer 

consent and is subject to an actuarial reduction.  

6.3.2. The actuarial reduction will be in line with the Government Actuaries 

Department guidance.  In such cases of voluntary retirement between the ages 

of 55 – 60, the Rule of 85 protections does not apply in line with the discretion 

5.15.  

6.3.3. This option is available to current employees who are suffering from ill 

health and who do not qualify for medical certification (incapacity).  

  

67



12 
 

6.4. Retirement on the grounds of redundancy.  

6.4.1.Where an employee aged 55 or over is dismissed or their employment 

terminated by mutual consent on the grounds of redundancy, they are entitled 

to receive immediate payment of their  pension and it is not subject to an 

actuarial adjustment. The actuarial strain continues to be taken by the Council 

as the employer. 

6.4.2. If the employee has been paying additional pension contributions, those 

additional pension contributions are subject to actuarial reductions in line with 

the regulation 30 (7) and any further guidance. 

6.5. Retirement on the grounds of business efficiency – employer 

consent  

6.5.1. Where an employee aged 55 or over is dismissed or their employment 

terminated by mutual consent on the grounds of business efficiency, (employer 

consent retirement) they may be entitled to receive immediate payment of their 

pension and it is not subject to an actuarial adjustment. The actuarial strain 

continues to be taken by the Council as the employer in line with regulation 30 

(7) (b). 

6.5.2. If the employee has been paying additional pension contributions, those 

additional pension contributions are subject to actuarial reductions in line with 

the regulation 30 (7) (a) and any further guidance. 

6.5.3. The Council has defined business efficiency in its principles (4.2 and 4.3) 

and will consider each case on a case by case basis in line with the principles.  

6.6 Flexible retirement  

6.6.1. The Council has adopted the discretion to allow flexible retirements and 

will consider requests from employees on a case by case basis, taking account of 

business needs, in line with the principles.  Requests for flexible retirement must 

result in a material efficiency, which is defined in principle 4. 2, namely: 

The definition of efficiency shall include, but not be limited to financial 

savings and / or quality improvements judged on a case by case basis. As 

a general principle the Council requires a reduction in working hours or a 

significant reduction in grade for an efficiency to be considered material in 

flexible retirement requests.  

  

68



13 
 

6.7 Ill health retirement  

6.7.1. The Council will approve the release of pension benefits on the 

termination of employment when an employee has meets the following 2 

conditions: 

1. That the member is, as a result of ill health or infirmity of mind or 

body, permanently incapable of discharging efficiently the duties of the 

employment the member was engaged in and 

2. The member, as a result of ill health or infirmity of mind and body is 

not immediately capable of undertaking gainful employment.   

6.7.2 There are currently 3 tiers of ill health retirement benefits that depend on 

the prognosis for future employment.  

• The entitlement to Tier 1 benefits occur when the employee is unlikely to 

be capable of undertaking gainful employment before normal pension age. 

Assumed pensionable pay up to normal pension age for that individual 

would be applied to their pension account so that the employee’s benefits 

are what they would have got had they continued at work until their 

normal pension age.  

 

• The entitlement to Tier 2 benefits occur when the employee is unlikely to 

be able to undertake any gainful employment within 3 years of leaving 

their employment but is likely to be able to undertake gainful employment 

before reaching normal pension age. A 25% enhancement to their pension 

would be applied as per the regulations.  

 

• The entitlement to Tier 3 benefits occurs when the employee is likely to 

be capable of undertaking gainful employment within 3 years of leaving 

the Council.  Tier 3 benefits are payable for a maximum of 3 years based 

on actual contributions to the end of the individuals employment with the 

Council. Tier 3 pensions are not enhanced. The Council will arrange a 

review of a tier 3 ill health retirement after 18 months and as required on 

a case by case basis.   

6.7.3. The Council will determine the tier of ill health pension release based on 

the certification of a suitably qualified independent registered medical 

practitioner (IRMP) in line with the regulations and guidance and the principles.  

6.7.4 Former employees who are deferred members of the pension scheme may 

request a release of their pension on ill health grounds at any age and the 

Council will reach a decision based on the certification of a suitably qualified 

Independent registered medical practitioner (IRMP) in line with the regulations 

and guidance and the principles in the same way as it does for current 

employees.  

  

69



14 
 

6.8 Retirement on Compassionate Grounds 

6.8.1 The council will consider retirements on compassionate grounds as an 

employer consent decision on a case by case basis, taking account of business 

needs in line with the principles, especially 4.11.  

6.8.2. The decision as to whether to waive any actuarial reductions or rule of 85 

protections is a discretion of the council and will be considered on a case by case 

basis in line with the principles.  

6.8.3. The council may require reports from a suitably qualified independent 

registered medical practitioner (IRMP) or other professional to inform their 

decision.   

6.9 Temporary Reduction in contributions – the 50/50 option  

6.9.1. The 50/50 option is designed to be a short term temporary arrangement 

during times of hardship, and allows employees to give written notice to pay half 

the contributions and accrue pension benefits at half the normal rate.  

6.9.2. The Council will provide information to an employee in such circumstances 

so that they understand the impact on their benefits.  

6.9.3. The council will pay contributions at the 100% rate in line with the 

regulations.  

6.10 Deferred Members.  

6.10.1. Former employees may request the early release of their pension 

benefits from age 55.  

6.10.2 If their employed ceased after 1st April 2014, when the Local Government 

Pension Scheme 2014 was in place, this may be considered in line with 

Regulation 30(5). Such requests do not need the consent of the employer as in 

such cases the benefits are subject to an actuarial reduction in line with the 

government actuaries’ department guidelines. 

6.10.3. If their employment ceased before the Local Government Pension 

scheme 2014 was introduced, they will have their requests considered under the 

policies and regulations in place when their employment with South Kesteven 

District Council ceased.  

6.10.14. These arrangements may be subject to changes in the transitional 

arrangements and the Council will default to the transitional arrangements in 

place at the time any decisions have to be made.  

    

  

70



15 
 

 

Links to other policies & guidance  

The Councils Pension policy 2007 

http://moderngovsvr/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=4522 

The Councils new look pension scheme approved by Council 3rd March 

2008  

http://moderngovsvr/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=5171 

Additional Pension Policy Statements Officer decision 17th September 

2013  

..\Pension Administrators templates Aug 2013\SKDC Pension additional 

statements signed October 2013.pdf 

Statutory Instrument 2013 No. 2356 dated 19th September 2013 

http://www.lgpsregs.org/images/SI/2014regsSept2013 

http://www.lgpsregs.org/index.php/the-regulations/timeline-regulations-

2014 

Information about the new local government pension scheme 2014  

www.LGPS2014.org 

HR guidance updated 13th December 2013 

http://www.lgpsregs.org/images/Versions/HRv2.0 

 

71

http://moderngovsvr/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=4522
http://moderngovsvr/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=5171
file:///C:/Users/joyceslater/Desktop/Pension%20Administrators%20templates%20Aug%202013/SKDC%20Pension%20additional%20statements%20signed%20October%202013.pdf
file:///C:/Users/joyceslater/Desktop/Pension%20Administrators%20templates%20Aug%202013/SKDC%20Pension%20additional%20statements%20signed%20October%202013.pdf
http://www.lgpsregs.org/images/SI/2014regsSept2013
http://www.lgpsregs.org/index.php/the-regulations/timeline-regulations-2014
http://www.lgpsregs.org/index.php/the-regulations/timeline-regulations-2014
http://www.lgps2014.org/
http://www.lgpsregs.org/images/Versions/HRv2.0


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pensions Policy 

Discretions Procedure 

2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

73



1. PURPOSE 

 

1.1 This procedure sets out the process for the consideration of requests by 

employees for the Council to exercise a discretion under its Pensions Policy 

Statement (“Statement”).  This procedure should be read in conjunction with 

the Pensions Policy Statement which details the relevant discretions in 

Appendix 1. 

 

2. REGULATIONS 

 

2.1The Local Government Pension Scheme (“LGPS”) in England and Wales was 

amended from 1 April 2014. The new LGPS rules, together with protections for 

members benefits accrued before 1 April 2014, are now contained in the Local 

Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 and the Local Government 

Pension Scheme (Transitional provisions, Savings and Amendment) 

Regulations 2014. (“Regulations”). 

 

2.2Under the Regulations, employers are required to formulate an employer 

discretions policy in respect of certain Regulations where a decision made by 

such employer will or may incur a financial cost to the employer. This paper 

seeks to underpin the Council’s Pensions Policy Statement by setting criteria 

which could be considered and inform the Council’s decision on such employer 

discretions in respect of member benefits under the LGPS. 

 

3. GENERAL APPROACH 

 

3.1 The approach to exercising a discretion under the Statement is to allow the 

Council to make a reasonable decision in individual cases but also to be clear 

as to the factors it will take into account in making a decision. 

 

Generally, the discretionary powers will be exercised reasonably and 

- will be exercised in the public interest 

- will take into account all relevant circumstances (costs being balanced 

against benefit to the Employer) 

- will exclude any irrelevant circumstances 

- will only be used where there is a real and substantial benefit to the 

Council in return for incurring extra costs 

 

3.2 None of the criteria set out in this paper will be taken into account in such 

a way as to limit or fetter the discretion of an employer under the 

Regulations in breach of the law 

 

  

74



3.3 Requests for the exercising of a discretion under the Statement will be 

considered by a panel comprising the relevant Assistant Director and Director 

in conjunction with the Assistant Director of Finance, and Monitoring Officer 

(the Panel) Or any other process which the Council requires in accordance with 

the Council’s Constitution or legislation. Any reference to the Panel in this 

procedure will include any other procedure from time to time put in place to 

carry out the function of the Panel. 

 

4. FLEXIBLE RETIREMENT – REGULATION 30 (6) 

 

4.1 The Council will consider requests to exercise the discretion to waive the 

actuarial reduction for flexible retirement under Regulation 30 (8) where it 

can be demonstrated there is a business case for the request taking account 

of:  

• the Council’s ability to meet the cost of granting such a request 

• the potential for financial savings to be delivered over time 

• the operating requirements of the organisation existing, and 

reasonably foreseeable at the time of the request 

• the need to retain key skills/expertise 

• the potential impact on the delivery of key projects or initiatives 

• the employee’s personal circumstances. 

 

4.2 As a general principle the Council requires a reduction in working hours or a 

significant reduction in grade for an efficiency to be considered material in 

flexible retirement requests as set out in the Pensions Policy Statement. 

 

4.3 Other factors that should be taken into consideration include: 

• the need to retain the employee (and their skills) where they might 

otherwise have left and taken up employment elsewhere 

• any planned structural changes and the need for greater flexibility in 

managing workforce planning decisions enabling better succession 

planning and mentoring (skills transfers, etc) 

• improving employee wellbeing and/or enabling the employee to have a 

smoother transition into retirement 

• whether the employee is willing to commit to a reduction for a minimum 

period of time or remain in employment for a minimum period 

• the additional costs associated with recruiting and training a replacement 

for the “residual hours” of the post and/or the potential inability to 

reorganise the residual work amongst existing staff 

• any detrimental effect on the Council’s ability to meet customer demand 

and/or on the quality or performance of the service in question 

• insufficiency of work during the periods the employee proposes to work 

75



4.4 If the request is to move to a lower graded post, this would be subject to an 

appropriate vacancy arising and the operation of the Council’s normal recruitment 

procedures in filling the post. 

 

4.5 If the request is for a reduction of hours, agreement to the scheduling of the 

remaining hours to be worked must take account of the operational 

requirements/pressures of the service being delivered. 

 

4.6 Employees who have flexibly retired under Regulation 30(6) may not 

subsequently apply for positions that would result in either an increase in hours 

or being paid at a higher grade. 

 

5. WAIVING OF ACTUARIAL REDUCTION ON EARLY RETIREMENT – 

REGULATION 30 (8) 

 

5.1 The Pensions Policy Statement defines the term “compassionate” in terms of 

qualifying for consideration for waiver of an actuarial reduction on early 

retirement. 

 

5.2 If an active member of the LGPS is allowed to retire early in circumstances 

which are not related to compassionate grounds, the cost of any strain must 

be mitigated by the salary saving over three years in order for consent to be 

given in any case. This will not apply to any decision relating to a deferred 

member. 

 

5.3 Relevant criteria that should be taken into consideration include: 

• the Council’s ability to meet the cost of granting such a request 

• whether any demonstrable cost saving in excess of potential savings 

available under any severance arrangements in place from time to time 

can be made 

• if relevant, the employee’s personal circumstances. 

 

5.4 The Council will in applying its criteria for early retirement ensure that there 

is no direct or indirect age or other discrimination and that the criteria fall 

within the exceptions provided by the age regulations. 

 

  

76



6. FUNDING OF ADDITIONAL PENSION AND AWARDING ADDITIONAL 

PENSION 

 

6.1 Where requests are received in accordance with Regulations 16(2) (e) and 

16(4) (d) for the Council to fund additional pension contributions or grant 

additional pension, the following criteria should be considered in making a 

decision: 

• other options available under the Council’s severance arrangements 

• the potential benefit to the Council (including any potential savings) 

• the interests of the Council 

• the funding position of the Council within the fund 

• the Council’s ability to meet the cost of granting such a request 

 

7. PROCEDURE FOR REQUESTING DISCRETION 

7.1 The employee should make an application in writing to the HR Manager, 

detailing the reasons for their request, together with any supporting 

documentation. The application will be acknowledged by the Council’s HR team 

within ten working days with an indicated timeline and procedure so the 

employee is aware of what will be involved, when he or she may receive a 

decision, and what the contact details are.  

 

7.2 The response will also set out the appeals procedure.  The HR team will at an 

early stage decide what information is needed to enable a pack to be put 

together to assist the Panel in its deliberations. If it appears that the timescale 

will not be met, the employee will be informed of this in writing and a new 

timescale disclosed. 

 

7.3 The Panel will meet to consider the employee’s request in accordance with the 

indicated timeline.  The decision reached by the Panel will be notified to the 

employee within five working days of the meeting.  This will be in writing and 

will include details of the appeals process. 

 

7.4 If the employee wishes to appeal against the decision they should submit their 

appeal in writing to HR, detailing the reasons for their appeal. 

7.5 The appeal will be acknowledged by the Council’s HR team within ten working 

days with an indicated timeline and procedure so the employee is aware of 

what will be involved, when he or she may receive a decision, and what the 

contact details are.  

7.6 The appeal will be considered by the Council’s designated adjudicator and 

his/her decision will be notified to the employee within five days of the decision 

being made. 

7.6 The Chief Finance Officer is designated as the Council’s adjudicator for appeals 

against retirement decisions.  The Council reserves the right to nominate 

77



another Director or senior manager or such other procedure determined by the 

Council to act as adjudicator to cover for absence and to ensure the fair 

consideration of any appeal. 

 

78



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

21 September 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Annie Mason, 
Cabinet Member for People & Safer 
Communities 
 
 

 

 

SKDC Intranet 
 

Report Author 

Gary Andrew (IT Manager) 

   Gary.andrew@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with an update on 

the Council’s intranet. 

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Employment Committee: 

 

1. Notes the update on South Kesteven’s intranet site.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

79

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 Any financial implications associated with replacing the intranet will need to be 

considered as part of the budget setting process. 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2  The intranet must continue to adhere to legal requirements such as the Data 

Protection Act. 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.3  Part of the future plans is to create a more accessible platform and content.  

 

 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.4  Wellbeing support is currently provided on the intranet and this will continue to 

provide a hub of resources, advice and signposts for further support.   

 

Staffing 

 

1.5  The Intranet is a staff resource and there will therefore be lots of opportunities for 

staff to be involved in agreeing what they would like from their Intranet.  

  

80



 Resource for the upgrade will be from the IT Team and potentially project 

management support. Relevant teams will also be involved in specific content 

relating to their areas.  

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  The Employment Committee requested an update on the Council’s intranet 

including what changes took place in the review earlier this year and what the 

next steps are.  

 

2.2 Whilst a review of the intranet has taken place and a number of changes and 

updates were made, the platform currently being used very much limits the 

potential of a staff intranet.  

 

Intranet Review 

 

2.3  The intranet was reviewed in October 2021 with a purpose of updating content, 

rebranding the site and updating the directory.  

 

2.4  All departments with content on the intranet were asked to review it and remove or 

replace information where required. This included updates to the customer 

services pages including the contacts, the home page links and the health and 

safety advice. More recent updates have included adding the desk booking 

guidance and app to support the new ways of working.  

 

2.5  All the ‘Monty’ branding was removed (previous name for the intranet) and the site 

was rebranded with the corporate logos and colour scheme. 

 

2.6  The employee directory was linked to the IT user database to bring it up to date.  

 

Next steps 

 

2.7 There are several limitations of the current intranet platform which make it difficult 

to do a more substantial and significant update. The current intranet is old and 

does not have high usage. Plans are being put in place to refresh the council’s 

website and initial scoping is to take place to understand cost implications of also 

doing this for the intranet. 

 

2.8  User needs and possible solutions will be explored with the People Panel 

including potential options for a more interactive intranet and refresh of the design.  

 

 

3. Consultation 
 

81



3.1 The People Panel will be involved in future design options as well as wider staff 

consultation to ensure any new designs are useful and focused on what 

colleagues need from their intranet.  

 

 

 

  

 

 

82



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

21 September 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Annie Mason  
Cabinet Member for People and Safer 
Communities 
 
 

 

 

Operational Driving Policy 
 

Report Author 

Anne-Marie Coulthard, Assistant Director for Operations and Public Protection  

  a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The draft Operational Driving Policy details the arrangements that are in place and the 

collective responsibilities that will ensure that the risks associated with occupational 

driving are minimised, so far as reasonably practicable.  

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee 

1. Approves the adoption of the South Kesteven District Council Operational 
Driving Policy 

2. Delegates authority to the Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities, to make minor 
amendments to the Policy which may become necessary from time to time 
to ensure its continued accuracy, but do not affect its direction or intent. 

 

 

 

83

Agenda Item 10

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Clean and sustainable environment  

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 Any costs associated with the implementation of this policy can be met from within 

existing budgets.   

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 The Council has a legal duty under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 to 

ensure, as far as reasonably practicable, the health and safety of all employees 

while at work.  Employers and employees also have a duty to ensure that others 

are not put at risk by work related driving activities. 

 

Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.3 The Policy supports risk management, ensuring that employees are aware of their 

responsibilities and the relevant procedures that must be adhered to.  The use of 

CCTV and GPS tracking devices assists in providing evidence should a vehicle be 

involved in any accident, incident, or insurance claim.  

 

Health and Safety 

 

1.4 This Policy assists the Council in fulfilling its duties to minimise the health and 

safety risks associated with occupational driving.  It is anticipated that the Policy 

will have a positive impact on behaviours and support the timely and accurate 

investigation of any incidents. 

 

1.5 The use of CCTV and GPS tracking devices allows compliance with safe working 

practices to be monitored.   

84



 

Is an Equality Impact Assessment required?  Yes  

 

Human Resources 

 

1.6 The Policy provides clear information to employees and line managers on their 

responsibilities.  Any breach of this Policy may be dealt with under the Council’s 

disciplinary procedures.  

 

1.7 Guidance will be produced for managers,  detailing the process and access 

permissions for retrieving and viewing vehicle tracking information.    

 

Climate Change 

 

1.8 Carbon emissions from the operation of the Council’s vehicle fleet represent 

around a quarter of overall emissions. Encouraging vehicle users to make the 

most efficient use of vehicles and the use of tracking devices which could support 

education on more efficient driving styles could assist in reducing overall vehicle 

fuel consumption and emissions.  

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1 The Council is committed to the health and safety of its employees and members 

of the public. The Policy outlines the expectations that the Council places upon all 

employees who drive either their own vehicle or a vehicle provided by the Council 

for business purposes. 

 

2.2 The Policy incorporates a range of policy statements contained in the Council’s 

employee handbook.  These have been reviewed and expanded to include the 

additional responsibilities associated with driving heavy goods vehicles (HGV)  

and the use of GPS vehicle tracking devices.  

 

2.3 The Policy aims to:  

 

• Fulfil the requirements of the Council’s statutory ‘duty of care’ to all 

employees while at work and to safeguard others who may be put at risk 

from its work activities 

 

• Provide information to employees on their responsibilities and obligations 

when driving on Council business 

 

• Provide further clarity to drivers on the use of vehicles for Council business 

 

• Ensure drivers are compliant with both legal and corporate requirements 

 

85



• Promote awareness of the use of tracking systems and CCTV in Council 

owned vehicles and their purpose 

 

• Incorporate specific requirements for drivers of HGV vehicles 

 

2.4 The Policy will apply to all Council employees, agency workers, temporary and 

casual staff who drive a vehicle to carry out Council business. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 The Council has a legal duty of care to ensure, as far as is reasonably practicable,  

the health and safety of employees and others who may be affected by work 

related driving activities. 

 

3.2 The Policy clarifies responsibilities and expectations on all employees who drive 

for Council business, regardless of whether they use a vehicle provided for use by 

the Council or a personal vehicle.   

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 The Council could continue with the existing policy statements contained in the 

employee handbook, however, it is important that timely reviews are undertaken to 

ensure their continued accuracy and effectiveness.  

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 To ensure that the Council’s Policy relating to driving for business purposes 

continues to be accurate and effective.  

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 The Policy was developed in consultation with the Council’s Health and Safety and 

Compliance Manager, Human Resources Manager and Governance and Risk 

Officer.  Feedback was also sought from the Head of Housing Technical Services. 

 

6.2  The Trade Union has been consulted and no adverse comments were received.   

 

8. Appendices 
 

8.1 Appendix 1 – Draft Operational Driving Policy  

 

8.2 Appendix 2 -  Initial Equality Impact Assessment  

 

 

86



 

1 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Operational Driving & Vehicle Policy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Version Reason Date 

V1 Final draft for adoption 21 September 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

87



 

2 

 

 
 

 
 

Contents 
 

 
 
1. Introduction 

2. Qualifications to drive 

3. Insurance 

4. Road safety 

5. Fines, penalty points, convictions, and disqualification  

6. Usage of vehicles 

7. Tracking Devices and CCTV 

8. Reporting accidents and incidents 

9. Fuelling of Council Vehicles 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

88



 

3 

 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1. The Council recognises its duties under the Road Traffic Act 1988 and the Health 

and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 to ensure, as far as reasonably practicable, the 
health and safety of all employees while at work and to safeguard others who may 
be put at risk from its work activities. This duty extends to include work-related 
driving activities. 
 

1.2. The purpose of this Policy is to ensure compliance with legislation, the Health and 
Safety Executive Guidance for Employers “Driving at Work – Managing work-
related road safety”, to fulfil the requirements of the Council’s statutory ‘duty of 
care’ and to meet current insurance sector standards and requirements. 
 

1.3. This Policy details the arrangements and collective responsibilities that will ensure 
that the risks associated with occupational driving are minimised, so far as 
reasonably practicable.  
 

1.4. All persons driving while on Council business must be familiar with and always 
adhere to the Highway Code and relevant legislation.  
 

1.5. This Policy applies to all Council employees, agency workers, temporary and 
casual staff who drive a vehicle to carry out Council business.  These are referred 
to as “employees” throughout this Policy.    
 

1.6. Employees are reminded of their obligations in respect of other relevant Council 
policies e.g. use of pool cars, smoking, alcohol and drugs, and should refer to the 
Council’s Staff Handbook and relevant Fact Sheets for further information.  

 
2. Qualifications to drive 
 
2.1. Employees who drive on behalf of the Council for business purposes must hold the 

appropriate licence for the classification of vehicle being driven.  
 

2.2. Driving licences will be checked on commencement of employment and must be 
produced on request.  Employees are responsible for ensuring they hold the 
appropriate UK driving licence for the classification of vehicle and that their licence 
remains current throughout.  

 
2.3. Drivers of vehicles over 3500kg GVW e.g., Caged tippers, sweepers and refuse 

freighters are legally required to hold the Certificate of Professional Competence 
(CPC). The Council will provide CPC courses to help relevant drivers maintain the 
35 hours of periodic training.  Should a driver fail to attend training, it is their 
responsibility to ensure that they retain their CPC qualification. 

 
3. Insurance 
 
3.1. Employees who drive Council owned or hired vehicles for business purposes are 

automatically covered by the Council’s insurance policy (providing they meet the 
licence criteria for that vehicle). 

 

89



 

4 

 

3.2. Employees who use their own vehicle for Council business purposes must ensure 
that their personal insurance policy includes cover for business use. Evidence of 
this must be produced on request.  

 
4. Road Safety 
 
4.1. The law states that it is the responsibility of the driver to ensure that any vehicle 

driven on the public highway is safe and fit for use.  
 

4.2. Where an employee uses vehicles owned or hired by the Council, appropriate 
servicing and maintenance arrangements are in place in accordance with 
manufacturer’s recommendations, to ensure that the vehicle is fit for use. 

 
4.3. Employees must carry out basic routine vehicle checks and complete the relevant 

log prior to use.  If there is a defect on the vehicle this must be reported to the Fleet 
Manager/Supervisor.  Unsafe vehicles must not be driven.  

 
4.4. Employees who use their own vehicle for Council business purposes must ensure 

that the vehicle has a valid MOT certificate, is properly maintained and roadworthy. 
Evidence of this must be produced on request.  

 
4.5. Employees must keep accurate records of their driving history whilst driving on 

Council business, including date, time, destination, reason and start and finish 
mileage. Employees using vehicles owned or hired by the Council must complete 
the vehicle log or electronic record, and record safety checks completed on the 
vehicle as required. The Council has a legal duty to provide information that leads 
to the identification of a driver who has allegedly committed a road traffic offence.   
 

4.6. Employees must drive in a safe manner and within legal speed limits or to take 
account of adverse road conditions.  

 
4.7. Employees must ensure that seat belts are used by themselves and all 

passengers.   
 
4.8. Employees must not drive whilst under the influence of alcohol, illegal substances 

or medicines which affect driving (some over the counter or prescription medication 
can affect the ability to drive) and must always comply with the Council’s Alcohol 
and Drugs Policy.  

 
4.9. Employees must inform their line manager immediately of any medical condition 

which would prevent them from driving legally on the public highway.   Any 
changes or deterioration in any medical condition affecting their ability to drive, or 
hold a licence, must be reported to their line manager/supervisor and the DVLA.  

 
4.10. Any employee taking medication which may adversely affect their ability to drive 

must notify their line manager prior to starting work. 
 

4.11. Employees must not drive for extended durations without sufficient rest/breaks.  
Rest periods should be sufficiently long and continuous to ensure that employees 
do not harm themselves, colleagues, or members of the public.   

 

90



 

5 

 

4.12. LGV Category C drivers and above are considered professional drivers and must 
take a 30 minute (minimum) break after a maximum of 4 hrs driving during the 
working day; tipping, loading and unloading counts as driving. Drivers are 
responsible for the health and safety of the crew in the vehicle and should also 
ensure that other crew members take adequate rest breaks. 
 

4.13. It is illegal to hold and use a phone, sat nav, tablet, or any device that can send or 
receive data, while driving. Employees who are driving whilst at work are required 
to comply fully with the law.  Although devices with hands-free access are 
permitted, as long as they are not held at any time during their use, employees are 
encouraged to make use of the voicemail facility on their mobile phone and make 
return calls only when it is safe and legal to do so.   

 
5. Fines, Penalty Points, Convictions and Disqualification 

 
5.1. Employees must inform their line manager at the earliest opportunity of any points 

received for driving offences and report immediately should they accumulate 9 or 
more penalty points or receive a driving suspension or disqualification.  
 

5.2. Employees are personally responsible for all traffic/parking/speeding/enforcement 
fines and all fees incurred. 

   
6. Use of Vehicles 
 
6.1. Vehicles must only be used in connection with Council business using 

practical/logical routes. Multiple destinations should be pre-planned using the most 
efficient route to reduce total mileage, time and fuel usage. 

 
6.2. Where there is a requirement, which must be approved by the line manager, to 

take a Council vehicle home overnight, the vehicle must be kept secure and parked 
in the employee’s driveway, in a well-lit car park, or on a well-lit highway. Vehicles 
must be parked legally and not cause an obstruction. Employees are not permitted 
to use the vehicle for any purpose other than travelling between their home and the 
work site. 

 
6.3. Council vehicles are only to be used in connection with Council business. 

Employees are not permitted to use the vehicle for any private purpose, or to carry 
private passengers or goods. 
 

6.4. Smoking, including vaping is prohibited in any vehicle provided for business use by 
the Council. 
 

6.5. It is the employee’s responsibility to ensure the vehicle is kept in a clean, tidy and 
presentable condition at all times, both internally and externally. No unapproved 
extra markings/stickers/adverts etc are permitted. 
 

6.6. All vehicles must be loaded safely and securely, and the gross vehicle and axle 
weights adhered to at all times. Any loads must always be secured from moving 
and endangering the driver, the vehicle and other road users. Open backed 
vehicles must use roping, ratchet straps and sheeting/netting to prevent loss of 
load. 
 

91



 

6 

 

 
 

7. Tracking Devices and CCTV 
 

7.1. All Council vehicles are fitted with GPS tracking devices which record the location 
of the vehicle and driver behaviour at all times.   Some vehicles e.g., sweepers, 
7.5t caged tippers and refuse collection freighters are also fitted with CCTV.  
 

7.2. Real time location information can be accessed and will be used in some instances 
to effectively respond to service demands.  

 
7.3. Tracking and CCTV supports the Council in its duty of care, providing safety and 

security for employees, especially when lone working, and can help to ensure that 
employees and the Council are protected from false claims made by third parties.  
 

7.4. The data will be used to monitor how and where a vehicle is being driven and can 
highlight issues such as speeding, excessive acceleration and braking, periods of 
inactivity, excessive idling, unauthorised use outside of permitted hours and 
incidents of poor driving.       

 
7.5. Driving behaviour will be monitored via the tracking/CCTV systems and its data 

used to improve driver behaviour, vehicle utilisation and to investigate driving 
issues. Data may be used as evidence to support additional driver training, or in 
serious cases as part of disciplinary investigations.  
 

7.6. Where CCTV monitoring devices are fitted to vehicles to record the vehicle and 
operatives’ movements, the information will be used to ensure compliance with 
safe working practices and should the vehicle be involved in any accident, incident, 
or insurance claim. 

 
8. Reporting accidents and incidents 
 
8.1. In the event of any accident involving any vehicle being used on Council business, 

an accident report form must be completed and submitted to the employee’s line 
manager for comment before forwarding to the Corporate Health and Safety Team 
within 5 working days.   
 

8.2. The line manager should notify the Council’s Insurance Officer as soon as 
possible, irrespective of the amount of damage. 

 
8.3. Employees who are driving Council owned or hired vehicles and are involved in 

road traffic accidents, incident or theft which results in damage to vehicles, loss or 
damage to property or injury to persons, the employee must; 

 

• In the event of vehicle theft, vandalism or attempted break in, inform their line 
manager and the Police immediately (and obtain a Police incident number) 

• Not admit liability or offer payment to a third party or their insurer. 

• Note the registration number of the vehicle(s) involved and take the full name, 
address and contact numbers of each driver.  

• Obtain contact details of any witnesses and obtain statements from any 
witnesses if possible. 

92



 

7 

 

• Take photographs of the area and vehicles and provide a detailed sketch 
showing road markings, vehicle positions etc which may assist in any insurance 
claim.  

• Complete the Accident and Incident Report Form and forward to their line 
manager. 

• Notify their own insurer – this is essential as all motor claims are shared on a 
central record held by the Association of British Insurers.  Individuals will be 
asked at renewal if they have been involved in an accident and insurers can 
obtain this information.  

 
8.4. Employees who are involved in an accident/incident whilst engaged in work-related 

driving in their own vehicles should deal with any claims that arise from this directly 
with their own insurer.  

 

9. Fuelling of Council Vehicles 
 
9.1. All Council owned vehicles will be allocated a fuel pump card/fob.  Fuel must be 

obtained from the Council’s fuel pumps, currently at Mowbeck Way.  
 

9.2. Employees must ensure that the vehicle mileage is accurately recorded at the fuel 
pump.  
 

9.3. Lost or missing fuel fobs/cards must be reported to the Transport Manager 
immediately. 

93



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Equality Impact 
(Initial Analysis) 

 
 

Operational Driving Policy 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Area: 
Waste and Fleet  

Lead officer: 
Anne-Marie Coulthard 

Date of Meeting  
 
16/08/22 Assessors: 

Anne-Marie Coulthard  

Neutral Assessor: 
Kati Conway  

  

95



 

 

 

1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy 
 
 

The Operational Driving Policy details the arrangements and collective 
responsibilities that are in place to ensure that the risks associated with 
occupational driving are minimised, so far as reasonably practicable. 

 

 
 

Is this a new or existing policy?  New  
 
2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy could have any potential positive,  or 
negative impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) listed, using demographic data, user surveys, local 
consultations evaluation forms, comments and complaints etc. 

 

 
 
Equality Group 

Does this 
policy/service/function/strat
egy have a positive or 
negative impact on any of 
the equality groups?  
 
Please state which for each 
group 

Please describe why the 
impact is positive or 
negative. 
If you consider this policy 
etc is not relevant to a 
specific characteristic 
please explain why   

Age 
 
 

Neutral  This policy will be applied 
equitably and is relevant to all 
employees who drive for 
business purposes. Age is not 
considered to be a determinant 
of this policy.  

Disability 
 

 

Positive Where necessary, reasonable 
adjustments will be considered 
for employees with a disability 
who are required to drive for 
business purposes as required 
by the Equality Act.   

Race 
 

Neutral  This policy will be applied 
equitably and is relevant to all 
employees who drive for 
business purposes. Race  is 
not considered to be a 
determinant of this policy. 

Gender 
Reassignment 
 
   

Neutral  This policy will be applied 
equitably and is relevant to all 
employees who drive for 
business purposes. Gender 
Reassignment is not 

96



 

 

 

considered to be a determinant 
of this policy. 

Religion or 
Belief   

Neutral This policy will be applied 
equitably and is relevant to all 
employees who drive for 
business purposes.  Religion 
or Belief  is not considered to 
be a determinant of this policy. 

Sex 
 
 
   

Neutral This policy will be applied 
equitably and is relevant to all 
employees who drive for 
business purposes. Sex is not 
considered to be a determinant 
of this policy. 

Sexual 
Orientation 
 

Neutral This policy will be applied 
equitably and is relevant to all 
employees who drive for 
business purposes. Sexual 
Orientation is not considered 
to be a determinant of this 
policy. 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 
 
 

Positive  Individual risk assessments 
that consider the specific 
needs of employees who are 
pregnant, breastfeeding or 
have given birth in the last 6 
months are undertaken.  This 
would include driving for 
business purposes.   

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership 

Neutral This policy will be applied 
equitably and is relevant to all 
employees who drive for 
business purposes. Marriage 
and Civil Partnership is not 
considered to be a determinant 
of this policy 

Carers Neutral This policy will be applied 
equitably and is relevant to all 
employees who drive for 
business purposes. Carers is 
not considered to be a 
determinant of this policy 

97



 

 

 

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past) 
 
*(IMD = Indices 
of multiple 
deprivation) 
 

Positive  The provision of pool cars 
supports employees to 
undertake a role without the 
need to own and maintain a 
vehicle or have a vehicle 
available for work purposes. 

General 
comments 

 

 
 
3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 

the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings) 

 

Consultation with relevant Unions will be undertaken as part of the process 
of adopting this operational policy.   
 
Legislative requirements found in the Equalities Act and the Health and 
Safety at Work etc Act have been considered.  
 

 
If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed? 

 
  

 

 
 
4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 

required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 
Please check one of the options.    

 

a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any 
potential for discrimination or for negative impact and all 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken 

 

98



 

 

 

   

If you have checked option a) you can now send this form to the Lead 
Officer and your Neutral Assessor for sign off 

   

b) Adjust the proposal to remove barriers identified by equality 
analysis or to better promote equality.  

 

   

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 
and b.2  

   

c) Adverse impact but continue  

   

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1 

   

d Stop and remove the policy/function/service/strategy as equality 
analysis has shown actual or potential unlawful 

 

 
b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts? 

 
  

 

 
 
b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 

changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.   

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis 

 
c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 

justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy. 

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact. 
 
 

99



 

 

 

 
 

Signed (Lead Officer):    Anne-Marie Coulthard 
                                                                      Assistant Director, Operations and Public Protection 

  
Date completed:  10/08/22  

 
Signed (Neutral Assessor):  Kati Conway  
(Name and title)   Senior Neighbourhoods Officer  
 

Date signed off:     16/08/22  
 

100



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

21 September 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Annie Mason, 
Cabinet Member for People & Safer 
Communities 
 
 

 

 

Employee Handbook 
 

Report Author 

Fran Beckitt (HR Manager) 

   fran.beckitt@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with an update on 

the Council’s employee handbook and next steps of the handbook review.  

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Employment Committee: 

 

1. Notes the update on South Kesteven’s employee handbook.  

2. Support the proposal that the employee handbook is redesigned in order to 
become more user friendly, with signposting to HR policies. 

3. Delegates to the Deputy Chief Executive for minor changes to HR policies or 
the handbook, with the Employment Committee continuing to be kept fully 
informed of any changes.   

 

101

Agenda Item 11

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 Whilst the current handbook was produced by an external provider at a cost, the 

revised version and subsequent policies will be designed and published in-house 

and therefore will not have associated financial implications.  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2  Employment law forms the basis of many of our HR policy information and 

processes. These will continue to be aligned and any changes in employment 

laws will be reflected.   

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.3   South Kesteven District Council will ensure it remains with fair policies and 

practices in place which enable a diverse range of people to work together 

effectively and ensures an inclusive workplace.  

 

102



 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.4  Parts of the employee handbook outline our mental health and wellbeing support 

but as this has developed significantly since the handbook was written, this will be 

refreshed as part of the policy review.  

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

 

2.1 The Employment Committee requested an update on the employee handbook 

and any planned updates to the content.  

 

2.2 The employee handbook is a valuable communication resource for both 

employees and the organisation. It provides guidance and information relating to 

the council’s policies and procedures.  

 

2.3  Previously, the Council moved away from having documented HR policies and 

instead, commissioned an agency to provide the 55 page handbook which 

details guidance on a range of employment topics.  

 

2.4  The HR team regularly review the content and update where required.  

 

2.5  This handbook has been in place a few years and the feedback from employees 

is that this needs a complete refresh. Some are finding it difficult to find the 

content they are looking for as the document is 55 pages long and there is no 

search function for key words.  

 

2.4  Employees and line managers have raised a preference to have a shorter 

handbook which signposts policies and guidance documents on specific 

subjects. 

 

Handbook Review 

 

2.5  An initial review of the handbook has taken place and the following immediate 

updates are recommended: 

 

Topic Summary of change 

Alcohol and drugs (page 3 – 
5) 

Page 3 - Addition of links to information on 
alcohol and drug driving limits. Additional 
wording to cover testing of new starters in 
safety critical roles.  
Page 4 – wording amended to include whole 
organisation in random testing 
Page 5 – additional information under section 
headed Positive test results for alcohol and 

103



illegal drugs – includes additional information 
on positive/non-negative 

Long Service Awards (Page 
54) 

Amend content to new long service awards 
policy.  
Add wider recognition policy. 

Leaver’s process Amend leavers fact sheet to reflect changes to 
process including: 

- Exit interviews being offered to all 
leavers and conducted by HR 

- Changes in the long service award 
process. 

 

Next steps 

 

2.6  It is proposed that the next stage of the review moves to re-designing the 

handbook in a new format and designing HR policies.  

 

2.7  The principles for the policy review would be: 

- Focus on informal resolutions where applicable  

- Short, simple policies 

- A new user friendly layout 

- Supporting guides and process flowcharts to provide further 

guidance 

- Signposting further support e.g. HR, our Employee Assistance 

Programme, related forms and documentation etc.  

- Alignment to the culture and values that we want to inculcate. 

 

3. Reasons for the Recommendations 

 

Recommendation 2:  

 

3.1 It will resolve the difficulties employees are currently experiencing in locating the 

information they need. It will make the policies and guidance clear.  

 

3.2  It will give a full evaluation of our policies.  

 

3.3  The current Employee Handbook is not easy for us to amend internally and 

returning to the agency that created it will have associated costs. Re-designing 

this in a format that can be easily edited will therefore save future time and money.  

 

Recommendation 3: 

 

3.4  Delegation to the Deputy Chief Executive of minor changes to HR policy would 

allow quicker updates when required and ensure we stay aligned to changing 

employment laws.  

 

 

104



 

4.  Consultation 
 

4.1 Consultation will continue to include our union representatives and the People 

Panel.   

 

 

 

  

 

 

105



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

21 September 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Annie Mason, 
Cabinet Member for People & Safer 
Communities 
 
 

 

 

Recognition Update 
 

Report Author 

Fran Beckitt (HR Manager) 

   fran.beckitt@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with an update on 

employee recognition.  

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Employment Committee: 

 

1. Notes the update on South Kesteven’s recognition strategy.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

107

Agenda Item 12

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities? (delete as 
appropriate) 

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 Any financial implications associated with this report will be met from existing 

budgets. 

 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.4  Our recognition strategy continues to take account of diversity and inclusion to 

ensure no negative implications.  

 

 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.5  Building a culture of recognition is important to employee’s mental health and 

emotional wellbeing.  The recognition strategy aligns with the internal wellbeing 

strategy.  

 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  The Employment Committee requested an annual report to update on the 

employee recognition in place and any new initiatives.  

 

2.2  At South Kesteven, we want to ensure our people feel valued, inspired and proud 

of their contributions. We want to create a great company culture by focusing on 

108



positively rewarding the right behaviours and celebrate the positive things 

happening more.  

 

Revised Induction Process 

 

2.3  South Kesteven District Council’s recognition strategy has been reviewed with 

feedback sought from the People Panel.  

 

2.4  New initiatives include: 

 

#TeamSK Thank You Peer to peer nominations to say ‘thank you’ to a 
colleague and give a reason why. The first month 
attracted more than 50 nominations. A draw was made 
of all the nominees and the winner received an 
additional day’s annual leave.  

#TeamSK Thank You 
cards 

Designed and ordered for senior management to use 
to give personal recognition.  

Revised long service 
awards 

These were previously awarded when colleagues 
leave SKDC. The new process means colleagues are 
rewarded when the anniversary takes place making 
long service recognition more meaningful and timely. 

Manager discretionary 
recognition 

Giving managers the autonomy to say thank you to 
individuals within their teams for a great job or going 
the extra mile.  

Employee awards 
event 

We know that there are many, many examples where 
colleagues across SKDC have made outstanding 
contributions and in December 2022, we’ll hold an 
awards event to celebrate these.  

 

2.5  Recognition and benefits that continues to include: 

 

+5 days annual leave 
for 5 years service 

Continuation of this benefit.  

Cycle to work Government initiative that allows employees to get a 
brand new bike and safety equipment, all tax free.  

Wellbeing support ‘My Healthy Advantage Plus’ provides enhanced 
wellbeing tools and features that are designed to 
improve physical and mental health.  
We also have the EAP and an extensive internal 
wellbeing plan.  

Car leasing scheme Lease a car through pay and the package includes all 
tax, insurance, servicing and AA cover.  

Eye testing For employees regularly using display screen 
equipment as part of their work, they are entitled to a 
free test every two years and a possible contribution 
towards the cost of glasses.  

Network Benefits Employee benefits scheme which is free to everyone 
who works for SKDC and includes discounts on lots of 
brands.  

109



 

 

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 The People Panel continue to be involved in the recognition strategy, as do our 

Union representatives.    

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

110



Document is Restricted

111

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

115

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

117

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Employment Committee Work Programme 2022 – 2023 
 

Chairman: Councillor Sarah Trotter 
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Anna Kelly 
 

Subject Purpose Outcome sought 

 

21 September 2022 

Director Targets  To agree targets for the Council’s Deputy Chief 
Executive and Directors for the coming year. 

Agreed targets and priorities for members of 
Corporate Management team for 22/23. 

Corporate Values review To agree the next stage in reviewing the Council’s 
Corporate Values. 

Review update to be considered. 

Onboarding Procedure Review of how onboarding has changed since lockdown 
and new ways of working and the effectiveness on 
inductions. 

Update to Employment Committee annually. 
 

SKDC Intranet Review of SKDC intranet. For the Employment Committee to note. 

Draft Operational Driving 
Policy 

The draft Operational Driving Policy details the 
arrangements that are in place and the collective 
responsibilities associated with occupational driving. 

For the Employment Committee to approve. 

Employee Handbook Annual review of the Employee Handbook, to ensure in 
line with current legislation and changes 

Update to Employment Committee annually 
 

Employee Rewards and 
Recognition 

Annual report to Employment Committee to update on 
initiatives in place and any new initiatives. 

Update to Employment Committee annually 
 

121

A
genda Item

 14



Pay Review update The Committee to be presented with an update on the 
Pay Review including activity on the strands identified: 
 

• Career grades to attract talent 

• Review of lower pay grades 

• Identification and resolutions for inconsistencies 
between pay grades 

• Development of a consistent process of 
benchmarking of roles  

Pay review update for consideration.   

 

16 November 2022 

Staff Move to alternative 
accommodation 

An update and review of the principles of working. For consideration by the Employment 
Committee. 

HR People Plan and 
Dashboard 

The Committee to be presented with an update on the 
HR People Plan including metrics from the HR 
Dashboard which includes: 

• Establishment Figures 

• Sickness and Absence 

• Starters and Leavers 

• Performance Management 

• Learning and Development 

• Equality and Diversity 

 
 
HR People Plan update to be presented at each 
Employment Committee for consideration, along 
with the HR Dashboard metrics.  
 

 

18 January 2023 

Pay Policy Statement  Annual report to Employment Committee, to form part of 
the Budget setting process. 

To consider and recommend to full Council for 
approval. 

122



Workforce Equality and 
Gender Pay Gap Report 

Update to Employment Committee Annually. For consideration by the Employment 
Committee. 

The Work of the People Panel 
and staff survey 

An update on the work of the People Panel and findings 
of the staff survey. 

For the Employment Committee to note. 

 

8 March 2023 

Chief Executive Appraisal Annual Appraisal 
 

The Committee to note the Chief Executives 
Annual Appraisal. 

 

Items to be allocated 
None  

 

123



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on :
	Minutes of the meeting held on 28 March 2022
	MInutes of the meeting held on 15 June 2022

	4 Updates from the previous meeting
	5 Pay Review Update
	Appendix A - Pay Review Action Plan
	Appendix B - Equality Impact Analysis

	6 Corporate Values Update
	Appendix - Corporate Values Slides

	7 Induction Update
	8 Pensions Policy Statement and Pensions Discretions Procedure
	Appendix 1 - Draft Pensions Policy Statement 2022
	Appendix 2 - Draft Pensions Policy Discretions Procedure 2022

	9 SKDC Intranet
	10 Draft Operational Driving Policy
	Appendix 1 - Draft Operational Driving Policy
	Appendix 2 - Initial Equality Impact Assessment

	11 Employee Handbook
	12 Employee Rewards and Recognition
	13 Proposed Director Targets for 2022 - 2023
	Appendix 1 - Corporate targets for Directors posts - EXEMPT
	Appendix 2 - Specific targets for Directors posts - EXEMPT

	14 Work Programme 2022 - 2023

